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Úvodné slovo

Vážení akcionári, klienti a obchodní partneri,

s potešením si Vám dovoľujeme predložiť Výročnú správu za našu spoločnosť za rok 2014. 

Predchádzajúci rok znamenal pre slovenské hospodárstvo obrat a priniesol dlho očakávané rastové impulzy. Pozitívny výsledok bol do-
siahnutý najmä vďaka domácemu dopytu. Spotreba domácností potiahla rast slovenského hospodárstva aj vďaka zlepšujúcej sa situácii 
na trhu práce. Naopak, export nevykazoval najlepšie výsledky. Ekonomické ukazovatele z únie neprinášali počas roka dobré správy a euro-
zónu trápil nízky hospodársky rast. Miera neistoty na exportných trhoch pritom pretrváva aj naďalej.

Spoločnosť AXA d.s.s., a.s. má za sebou ďalší úspešný rok hospodárenia. Za rok 2014 zvýšila objem spravovaných aktív o 11,3 % na približ-
ne 1 668 miliónov EUR a v porovnaní s minulým rokom dosiahla výrazne vyšší kladný hospodársky výsledok – zisk po zdanení 4 307 227 
EUR. Spoločnosť mala ku koncu roka 2014 takmer 360 tisíc klientov a dosiahla 26% podiel na trhu dôchodkového sporenia, čím potvrdila 
svoju pozíciu 2. najväčšej dôchodkovej správcovskej spoločnosti na slovenskom trhu starobného dôchodkového sporenia. AXA d.s.s., a.s. si 
chce aj naďalej udržať svoje popredné postavenie na slovenskom trhu dôchodkového sporenia a neustále zvyšovať kvalitu poskytovaných 
služieb svojim klientom.

Rozloženie sporiteľov v jednotlivých fondoch sa k 31.12.2014 výrazne nezmenilo. Pre garantovaný fond sa rozhodlo až 87 % sporiteľov, 13 % 
sporiteľov uprednostňuje dôchodkové sporenie v negarantovaných fondoch. V správe majetku Dlhopisového garantovaného dôchodkového 
fondu AXA d.s.s., a.s. dosiahla spoločnosť zhodnotenie úspor klientov na úrovni 3,34%. V správe majetku negarantovaných dôchodkových 
fondov bolo dosiahnuté zhodnotenie úspor klientov v Akciovom negarantovanom dôchodkovom fonde AXA d.s.s., a.s. na úrovni 8,60% 
a v Indexovom negarantovanom dôchodkovom fonde AXA d.s.s., a.s. na úrovni 17,08%. Zaujímavé zhodnotenie sa podarilo dosiahnuť vďaka 
vhodnej štruktúre aktív v jednotlivých fondoch, kde práve akciové investície pomohli zvýšiť výkonnosť v prostredí s nízkymi úrokovými sad-
zbami.

Skupina AXA je spoločensky zodpovednou firmou. Jej prioritou je spolupráca s komunitami, podpora finančnej gramotnosti a ohľaduplný 
prístup k životnému prostrediu. Pravidelne organizuje charitatívne podujatia AXA Srdcia v akcii, AXA Fond, Zbierky AXA, Hodina zeme, Deň 
chôdze zamestnancov AXA, Darovanie krvi či vzdelávací projekt pre študentov Deň v AXA. V rámci AXA Srdcia v akcii poskytuje ľuďom, 
ktorí to potrebujú najviac, finančnú, materiálnu a logistickú podporu. Od roku 1991 sa tento projekt snaží vytvoriť pomyselný most medzi 
charitatívnymi organizáciami, skupinou AXA a zamestnancami, ktorí neváhajú zapojiť sa do dobrovoľníckej práce. Vyjadrujú tak solidaritu 
a snahu pomôcť ľuďom v núdzi. Ďalším projektom firemného dobrovoľníctva je Deň v AXA. Má charakter neformálneho workshopu spoje-
ného s exkurziou v priestoroch spoločnosti na jej organizačných úrovniach. AXA na Slovensku organizuje aj vecné zbierky pre ľudí v krízo-
vých centrách. Pomáha im tiež finančne. Zamestnanci finančnej skupiny AXA na Slovensku sa môžu zapájať aj do podujatia AXA Daruj krv 
a zachráň život, ktoré AXA organizuje v spolupráci s Národnou transfúznou službou SR. Finančná skupina AXA na Slovensku každoročne 
organizuje grantový program AXA Fond, 
v rámci ktorého podporuje mladých a ambicióznych študentov z rodín s nízkymi príjmami. AXA fond umožňuje budúcim mladým vedcom 
získať potrebné finančné prostriedky na zaujímavé projekty z oblasti vzdelávania, prírodných, či humanitných vied. Finančnú čiastku môžu 
študenti čerpať aj na technické a komunikačné zabezpečenie realizácie projektu, alebo účasť na vedeckých konferenciách a seminároch. 
Študenti však musia mať výborný študijný prospech, preukázať sa účasťou na olympiádach, súťažiach, angažovať sa v záujmových činnos-
tiach.

Ďakujeme Vám za dôveru v skupinu AXA a veríme v pokračovanie našej úspešnej spolupráce.

			   Ing. Peter Socha,
			   predseda predstavenstva AXA d.s.s., a.s.

 

Úvodné slovo 
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Skupina AXA
Francúzska skupina AXA je celosvetovým lídrom vo finančnom zabezpečení. Celosvetovo má AXA 103 miliónov klientov v 59 krajinách sveta, 
161 tisíc zamestnancov a jej celkové výnosy za rok 2014 presiahli 92 miliárd eur. Skupina AXA zvýšila v minulom roku príjmy vo všetkých 
segmentoch. Čistý zisk zaznamenal v medziročnom porovnaní nárast zo 4,5 miliardy EUR na 5 miliárd EUR. AXA Group tak v roku 2014 
potvrdila svoj silný výkon z posledných rokov, ktorý je v súlade s nastavenou stratégiou Ambícia AXA pre rok 2015. 

Kmeňové akcie skupiny AXA sú kótované v sekcii A na burze Euronext Paris pod symbolom CS (ISIN FR0000120628 – Bloomberg: CS FP 
– Reuters: AXAF.PA). Americké depozitné akcie sú kótované aj na burze NYSE, a to pod symbolom AXA. Skupina AXA je súčasťou hlavných 
medzinárodných indexov SRI, ako je napríklad Dow Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI) a FTSE4Good.
 
Hlavnou oblasťou pôsobenia skupiny AXA je finančné zabezpečenie. Ambíciou AXA je stať sa preferovanou spoločnosťou v tomto segmen-
te. Ponúka životné poistenie, majetkové a úrazové poistenie, dôchodkové sporenie, správu aktív, asistenčné služby, poradenstvo, právnu 
ochranu a iné. Misiou AXA je pomáhať svojim klientom a ich príbuzným v dlhodobom horizonte. Najmä žiť ich život pokojnejšie a chrániť 
zároveň úspory a majetok.

 
AXA na Slovensku 
AXA má na Slovensku zastúpenie aj prostredníctvom nasledujúcich spoločností: 

•	 AXA životní pojišťovna a.s., pobočka poisťovne z iného členského štátu 
	 Spoločnosť začala vykonávať svoju poisťovaciu činnosť na Slovensku v januári 2006 a odvtedy poskytuje komplexné služby v oblasti 

životného poistenia. 

•	 Doplnková dôchodková spoločnosť AXA d.d.s., a.s.
	 Doplnkový dôchodková spoločnosť AXA d.d.s, a.s. vstúpila na slovenský trh pod názvom DDP LIPA v roku 1999. Po vstupe 

švajčiarskeho kapitálu v roku 2002 sa pretransformovala na DDP CREDIT SUISSE LIFE&PENSIONS. V roku 2006 sa transformovala 
na doplnkovú dôchodkovú spoločnosť a spravuje tri doplnkové dôchodkové fondy.

•	 AXA investiční společnost a.s., organizačná zložka Slovensko 
	 Spoločnosť vznikla v roku 2007 ako organizačná zložka investičnej spoločnosti AXA investiční společnost a.s., Praha. Klientom 

ponúka investovanie do podielových listov fondov: do peňažného fondu, do dlhopisového fondu, akciového fondu a do fondov fondov. 

•	 AXA pojišťovna a.s., pobočka poisťovne z iného členského štátu 
	 Skupina AXA vstúpila na slovenský trh neživotného poistenia koncom roka 2008. Klientom ponúka komplexné portfólio služieb 

finančného zabezpečenia v oblasti neživotného poistenia. 

•	 AXA Services s.r.o.
	 Spoločnosť AXA Services, s.r.o. vykonáva zverené činnosti pre spoločnosti AXA d.d.s., a.s. a AXA d.s.s., a.s. a iné servisné činnosti pre 

ostatné spoločnosti patriace do finančnej skupiny AXA na Slovensku. 

Skupina AXA, AXA na Slovensku
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Informácie o spoločnosti a o finančnej situácii 
Stav k 31.12.2014
AXA d.s.s, a.s.
Kolárska 6
Bratislava 811 06
IČO: 35 903 821
DIČ: 2021 892 961

Akciová spoločnosť zapísaná v obchodnom registri Okresného súdu Bratislava I oddiel: Sa, vložka číslo: 3441/B

Výška základného imania: 59 923 940 EUR 
Priemerný prepočítaný počet zamestnancov za rok 2014: 11
Celkový počet klientov: 359 688

Dôchodková správcovská spoločnosť AXA d.s.s, a.s. pôsobí na Slovenskom trhu od roku 2004 (predtým Winterthur d.s.s, a.s., pôvodným 
menom Credit Suisse Life & Pensions d.s.s, a.s.). AXA d.s.s., a.s. je 2. najväčšou dôchodkovou správcovskou spoločnosťou na slovenskom 
trhu a môže sa oprieť o silné a stabilné zázemie skupiny AXA.

Predmetom činnosti je vytváranie a správa dôchodkových fondov za účelom vykonávania starobného dôchodkového sporenia v zmysle 
zákona č. 43/2004 Z.z. o starobnom dôchodkovom sporení a o zmene a doplnení niektorých zákonov v znení neskorších predpisov. 

V súčasnosti spoločnosť spravuje nasledovné dôchodkové fondy:
Akciový negarantovaný a.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.
Dlhopisový garantovaný d.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.
Indexový negarantovaný a.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.
Čistá hodnota majetku v akciovom fonde: 168 672 362 EUR
Čistá hodnota majetku v dlhopisovom fonde: 1 455 906 765 EUR
Čistá hodnota majetku v indexovom fonde: 41 506 943 EUR 
 
AXA d.s.s., a.s. je druhá najväčšia dôchodková správcovská spoločnosť na slovenskom trhu starobného dôchodkového sporenia a jej podiel 
podľa výšky spravovaných aktív dosiahol na trhu ku koncu roka 2014 výšku 26 %. Objem majetku v roku 2014 v spravovaných dôchodko-
vých fondoch v porovnaní s predchádzajúcim rokom vzrástol o 11,3 %. Rozloženie sporiteľov v jednotlivých fondoch sa k 31.12.2014 výraz-
ne nezmenilo. Pre garantovaný fond sa rozhodlo až 87% sporiteľov, 13% sporiteľov uprednostňuje dôchodkové sporenie v negarantovaných 
fondoch.

Spoločnosť dosiahla k 31.12.2014 kladný hospodársky výsledok – zisk po zdanení 4 307 227 EUR, ktorý je v porovnaní s predchádzajúcim 
obdobím výrazne vyšší. Rozhodnutím valného zhromaždenia bude hospodársky výsledok dosiahnutý v roku 2014 po vytvorení zákonného 
rezervného fondu zaúčtovaný ako nerozdelený zisk minulých rokov. Pozitívny vplyv na výsledok hospodárenia v sledovanom období mala na-
jmä dosiahnutá odplata za zhodnotenie fondov, ktorá prekonala očakávania najmä pri zhodnotení akciových investícií. V porovnaní s pred-
chádzajúcim obdobím výnosy zo zhodnotenia vzrástli o 120%. Pokles príjmov z odplaty za vedenie účtu zodpovedá poklesu príspevkov 
sporiteľov z 9% na 4% v súlade s platnou legislatívou.

Podrobné informácie o finančnej situácii spoločnosti a výsledku jej hospodárenia sú obsiahnuté v účtovnej závierke za rok 2014, ktorej 
úplná verzia je súčasťou tejto Výročnej správy. Ročná účtovná závierka spoločnosti k 31.12.2014 bola overená audítorskou spoločnosťou 
Mazars Slovensko, s.r.o., Licencia UDVA č.236.

Informácie o spoločnosti a o finančnej situácii
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Orgány spoločnosti, akcionári a audítor 
AXA d.d.s., a.s.

Predstavenstvo:
Predseda predstavenstva:
Ing. Peter Socha, od 30.11.2005

Členovia predstavenstva:
Ing. Ľubor Vrlák, od 29.6.2012
Martin Vogl, od 30.10.2012
Sébastien Guidoni, od 4.12.2013

Dozorná rada:
Členovia dozornej rady:	
Jozef Eugeen Cyriel Van IN – predseda, od 31.01.2013
Laurent Goudemant, od 25.09.2009
Jean-Yves Roger Marie LE BERRE, od 31.01.2013

Počet, druh, podoba a menovitá hodnota akcií: 
Počet akcií: 23 620 kmeňové, zaknihované
Menovitá hodnota jednej akcie / Par value: 2 537 EUR

Depozitár:
UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s., so sídlom Želetavská, 14092 Praha 4-Michle, Česká republika, IČ: 649 48 242, spoloč-
nosť zapísaná v obchodnom registri vedenom Mestským súdom v Prahe, oddiel B, vložka č. 3608, v Slovenskej republike konajúca prostred-
níctvom svojej organizačnej zložky UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s., pobočka zahraničnej banky, so sídlom Šancová 1/A, 
813 33 Bratislava, IČO: 47 251 336, zapísaná v obchodnom registri Okresného súdu Bratislava I, oddiel Po, vložka č. 2310/B

Audítor: 
Mazars Slovensko, s.r.o., Europeum Business Center, Suché mýto 1, 811 03 Bratislava, IČO: 35 793 813, Obchodný register Okresného 
súdu Bratislava I oddiel: Sro, vložka číslo: 22257/B

Akcionár:
AXA životní pojišťovna a.s.,, Lazarská 13/8, 120 00 Praha 2, Česká republika

Informácia o nákladoch na činnosť v oblasti výskumu a vývoja
Spoločnosť nevynakladá finančné prostriedky na výskum a vývoj.

Informácia o nadobúdaní vlastných akcií
Spoločnosť nenadobudla v priebehu roku 2014 do svojho portfólia vlastné akcie, dočasné listy a obchodné podiely, ani akcie, dočasné listy 
a obchodné podiely materskej účtovnej jednotky.

Informácia o organizačných zložkách v zahraničí
Spoločnosť nezriadila organizačnú zložku v zahraničí.

Vplyv účtovnej jednotky na životné prostredie a zamestnanosť 
Spoločnosť nemá negatívny vplyv na životné prostredie. Spoločnosť nemá významný vplyv na zamestnanosť v regióne. 

Udalosti osobitného významu, ktoré nastali po skončení účtovného obdobia, za ktoré sa vyhotovuje výročná správa
Po skončení účtovného obdobia nenastali žiadne významné udalosti.

 

Orgány spoločnosti, akcionári a audítor 
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Správa dozornej rady
Dozorná rada splnila svoje úlohy v súlade so zákonom č. 43/2004 Z.z. o starobnom dôchodkovom sporení a o zmene a doplnení niektorých 
zákonov v znení neskorších predpisov, ostatnými právnymi predpismi a stanovami spoločnosti.

Od predstavenstva dostávala pravidelne správy o činnosti a o jej finančnej situácii. Dozorná rada priebežne kontrolovala chod spoločnosti a jej 
podnikateľský vývoj v roku 2014 a predkladala predstavenstvu svoje stanoviská, názory a podnety k problémom, zámerom a skutočnostiam.

Dozorná rada konštatuje, že predstavenstvo a manažment spoločnosti realizovali všetky odporúčania dozornej rady a zohľadňovali záujmy 
účastníkov poistenia aj záujmy akcionárov.

Dozorná rada prebrala správu predstavenstva o činnosti spoločnosti za rok 2014, účtovnú uzávierku i správu audítora. V hospodárení spo-
ločnosti nenašla dozorná rada žiadne nedostatky. 

Dozorná rada odporučila valnému zhromaždeniu, aby schválilo účtovnú uzávierku spoločnosti za rok 2014.

Výhľad na nasledujúce obdobie
Prioritou spoločnosti v nasledujúcom období je hlavne udržať svoje popredné postavenie na slovenskom trhu dôchodkového sporenia, zod-
povedne sa postaviť v poradí už k štvrtému otvoreniu 2. piliera a naďalej pokračovať v profitabilnom hospodárení.

Začiatkom roka 2015 sa z 2. piliera začali vyplácať prvé dôchodky, jednotlivé spôsoby vyplácania špecifikuje anuitná novela schválená 
v roku 2014. V období od 15. marca do 15. júna 2015 bude 2. pilier opäť otvorený a sporitelia tak budú mať možnosť vystúpiť ako aj vstúpiť 
do 2. piliera.

Spoločnosť AXA d.s.s., a.s. sa zameriava najmä na kvalitu poskytovaných služieb počas celkového obdobia trvania zmluvy súčasným ako 
aj novým klientom Práve kvalita môže pozitívne ovplyvniť ďalší rozvoj Spoločnosti z hľadiska trvalej udržateľnosti a dlhodobej spokojnosti 
klientov, akcionárov a samotných zamestnancov.

Napriek neustálym legislatívnym zmenám a opätovnému otvoreniu 2. piliera sme presvedčení, že 2. pilier bude mať naďalej nezastupiteľné 
miesto na trhu dôchodkového sporenia hlavne pre mladšie generácie a z dlhodobého pohľadu nestratí na atraktivite pre sporiteľov. 

Správa dozornej rady a výhľad na nasledujúce obdobie
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Správa nezávislého audítora a individuálna účtovná závierka spoločnosti AXA d.s.s., a.s. k 31.decembru 
2014 pripravená v súlade s medzinárodnými štandardami pre finančné výkazníctvo v znení prijatom EÚ 
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SKAXA d.s.s., a.s.

Zoznam regionálnych riaditeľstiev AXA

Regionálne riaditeľstvo Bratislava
Cintorínska 11 
811 08 Bratislava
Telefón: +421 2 3211 3170
Mobil: +421 918 701 621
E-mail: riaditelstvo.bratislava@axa.sk

Regionálne riaditeľstvo Trnava
Hlavná 2/3
917 01 Trnava
Telefón: +421 33 5341 351
Mobil: +421 918 701 620
E-mail: riaditelstvo.trnava@axa.sk

Regionálne riaditeľstvo Trenčín
Mierové námestie 14
911 01 Trenčín
Telefón: +421 32 7445 995
Mobil: +421 918 701 622
E-mail: riaditelstvo.trencin@axa.sk

Regionálne riaditeľstvo Banská 
Bystrica
Dolná ul. 47
974 01 Banská Bystrica
Telefón: +421 48 4156 808
Mobil: +421 917 860 412
E-mail: riaditelstvo.banska.bystrica@axa.sk

Regionálne riaditeľstvo Žilina
Štúrova 14
010 01 Žilina
Telefón: +421 41 5643 073
Mobil: +421 918 701 624
E-mail: riaditelstvo.zilina@axa.sk

Regionálne riaditeľstvo Prešov
Slovenská ul. 84
080 01 Prešov
Telefón: +421 51 7581 030
Mobil: +421 917 860 420
E-mail: riaditelstvo.presov@axa.sk

Regionálne riaditeľstvo Košice
Pribinova 2
040 01 Košice
Telefón: +421 55 6220 260
Mobil: +421 918 701 626
E-mail: riaditelstvo.kosice@axa.sk
 
Regionálne riaditeľstvo Nové Zámky
Podzámska 31
940 02 Nové Zámky
Telefón: +421 35 64 32 141
Mobil: +421 918 710 731
E-mail: riaditelstvo.nove.zamky@axa.sk 

Regionálne riaditeľstvo Bardejov
Stöcklova 13
085 01 Bardejov
Telefón: +421 54 4795 051
Mobil: +421 915 851 154
E-mail: riaditelstvo.bardejov@axa.sk

Regionálne riaditeľstvo Vranov nad 
Topľou
Duklianskych hrdinov 1001
093 01 Vranov nad Topľou
Telefón: +421 57 4432 403
Mobil: +421 917 860 405
E-mail: riaditelstvo.vranov@axa.sk

Additional Distribution Nitra
Štefánikova trieda 9
949 01 Nitra
Mobil: +421 917 401 491
E-mail: monika.hlinkova@axa.sk

Zoznam regionálnych riaditeľstiev AXA
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Management Report 

Dear Shareholders, Clients and Business Partners, 

We are pleased to present this Annual Report describing the activities of our company in 2014.

Previous year meant for the Slovak economy turnover and brought the long-awaited growth impulses. A positive result was achieved mainly 
due to domestic demand. The growth of the Slovak economy was influenced positively by household consumption and the improving situa-
tion on the labor market. On the contrary, exports did not show satisfying results. Economic indicators of the European Union did not bring 
positive news during the past year and eurozone suffered from low economic growth. Uncertainty in export markets still persists.

2014 saw another successful financial year at AXA d.s.s., a.s. Compared to last year the company increased the amount of assets man-
aged by them by 11,3% (thus reaching EUR 1 668 million) and reached a significantly higher positive financial result – profit after tax of 
EUR 4 307 227. As at the end of 2014, AXA d.s.s., a.s. had almost 360 thousand clients and reached a 26% share in Slovakia’s retirement 
pension saving market. These results confirmed the company’s position as the the second largest retirement pension asset management 
company in the Slovak pension savings market. Our company wants to maintain its leading position in the Slovak pension savings market 
and constantly improve the quality of services provided to their clients.

The structure of savers participating in the individual funds showed no significant changes as at 31 December 2014. As many as 87% of 
savers decided to participate in the guaranteed fund, 13% prefer savings in non-guaranteed funds. In the management of the assets of 
guaranteed fund, the Company reported an appreciation of client savings of 3,34% (for Dlhopisový garantovaný dôchodkový fond AXA d.s.s., 
a.s.). In the management of the assets of non-guaranteed funds, the Company reported an appreciation of client savings of 8,60% (for 
Akciový negarantovaný dôchodkový fond AXA d.s.s., a.s.) and 17,08% (for Indexový negarantovaný dôchodkový fond AXA d.s.s., a.s.). This 
attractive appreciation was achieved thanks to an appropriate structure of both the Contributory and Global Equity Funds where particularly 
equity investments helped to increase the performance and efficiency in an environment distinguished by low interest rates.

The AXA Group is a socially responsible corporation. The group’s priority is to cooperate with communities, support the general financial 
literacy and an environment-friendly approach to business. On a regular basis, we organize charity events such as AXA Hearts in Action, Axa 
Fund, Collection of Items in AXA, Hour of Earth, AXA Employees Walk Day, blood donating, and an educational project for students entitled 
A Day at AXA. Under the AXA Hearts in Action event, the AXA group provides financial, material or logistic assistance to the most needy. 
Since 1991, this project has been striving to create an imaginary bridge between charity organizations, the AXA group and those employe-
es who do not hesitate to participate in volunteer activities. In this way, they express they solidarity and show their commitment to help 
people in need. A Day at AXA is another project of our corporate volunteer program. It has the nature of an informal workshop combined 
with a guided tour of the company‘s premises throughout its organizational levels. In Slovakia, AXA also organizes collections of items for 
people in crisis centers. This also includes financial assistance. The employees of the AXA financial group in Slovakia can also participate 
in the project entitled Donate Blood and Save Life organized by AXA in cooperation with the SR National Blood Transfusion Service. AXA in 
Slovakia organized annually grant program AXA Fund under which AXA intends to support young and ambitious students coming from low 
income families. AXA Fund enables future young scientists to obtain the necessary funds for interesting projects in the fields of education, 
natural science, and humanities. Students can also use the funds for technical implementation of the project and communication or for par-
ticipation in scientific conferences and seminars. Students must have excellent study results, they have to demonstrate their participation 
in Olympiads, competitions and engagement in various activities of interest.
We thank you for the trust you have placed in the AXA Group, and we believe in the continuation of our successful cooperation.

			   Ing. Peter Socha,
			   AXA d.s.s., a.s. Board of Directors Chairman

 

Management report   
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AXA Group
The French group AXA is a worldwide leader in the financial securities industry. AXA reports a total of 103 million clients in 59 countries 
around the world, 161 thousand employees and the group’s total revenues in 2014 exceeded EUR 92 billion.
Over the past year, the AXA Group increased their income in all sectors. The net profit, as compared to the previous year, increased from 
4.5 billion to 5 billion euros. In 2014, AXA Group vindicated their strong performance from the last years, which follows the group’s strategy 
“Ambition AXA” adopted for the year 2015.

AXA Group’s ordinary shares are listed on Euronext Paris, Section A, with the symbol CS (ISIN FR0000120628 – Bloomberg: CS FP – Reu-
ters: AXAF.PA). American Depository Shares (ADSs) are listed on NYSE with the symbol AXA. AXA Group is part of major international SRI 
indexes such as Dow Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI) and FTSE4Good.
 
AXA Group’s primary scope of business operations is financial security. AXA has the ambition to become a preferred company in this seg-
ment. The Group offers life insurance, property and casualty insurance, retirement savings, asset management, counseling, legal protecti-
on and others. AXA’s mission is to help its clients and their relatives in the long term. Especially to help them live their lives more fully and 
joyfully and, at the same time, protect their savings and property.

AXA in Slovakia
AXA‘s representation in Slovakia is also through the following companies: 

•	 AXA životní pojišťovna a.s., an insurance company branch from another Member State
	 The company began its insurance operations in Slovakia in January 2006; since that time, it has been providing comprehensive 

services in the field of life insurance. 

•	 Doplnková dôchodková spoločnosť AXA d.d.s., a.s., a supplementary pension company 
	 In 1999, the AXA d.d.s., a.s. supplementary pension company entered Slovakia‘s market named as DDP LIPA (supplementary 

pension insurance company). After Swiss capital was put into its operations in 2002, DDP LIPA was transformed into DDP CREDIT 
SUISSE LIFE&PENSIONS. In 2006, the company was further transformed into a supplementary pension company, and has since then 
managed three supplementary pension funds.

•	 AXA investiční společnost a.s., organizačná zložka Slovensko [AXA Investment Company Ltd., Organizational Unit Slovakia] 
	 The company was founded in 2007 as a branch of the Prague-based investment company AXA investiční společnost a.s. It offers to 

its clients the option to invest in investment certificates of the following funds: a monetary fund, a bond fund, an equity fund, and in 
funds of funds. 

•	 AXA pojišťovna a.s., an insurance company branch from another Member State
	 The AXA group entered the Slovak non-life insurance market in late 2008. It offers to its clients a comprehensive portofolio of 

financial security services in the field of non-life insurance. 

•	 AXA Services, s.r.o.
	 AXA Services, s.r.o. performs operations entrusted to them by AXA d.s.s., a.s. and AXA d.d.s., a.s. and other service related activities 

for the rest of the companies who are members of the AXA financial group in Slovakia. 

AXA Group, Axa in Slovakia
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Information about the Company and its financial standing
Status as at 31 December 2014
AXA d.s.s., a.s.
Kolárska 6
811 06 Bratislava 
Business ID: 35 903 821
Tax ID: 2021 892 961

A joint-stock company entered in the Bratislava I District Court’s Register of Companies, Section: Sa, Entry No.: 3441/B

Amount of Registered Capital: EUR 59 923 940
Total number of clients: 359 688
Average number of Company’s employees for the year 2014 is 11.

The pension fund management company AXA d.s.s., a.s. has been successfully serving the Slovak market since 2004 (formerly Winterthur 
d.s.s, a.s., original name Credit Suisse Life & Pensions d.s.s, a.s.). AXA d.s.s., a.s. is the second largest retirement pension asset manage-
ment company operating in Slovakia’s market and it can rely on a strong and stable background of the AXA Group. 

The Company’s activities include the establishment and management of pension funds with the purpose of performing an old-age pension 
saving plan pursuant to Act 43/2004 Coll. on Old-Age Pension Savings and on amendments and supplements to certain laws, as amended 
by later legislation. 

At present, the Company manages the following retirement pension funds:
Akciový negarantovaný a.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.
Dlhopisový garantovaný d.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.
Indexový negarantovaný a.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.
The net value of the assets kept in the equity fund: EUR 168 672 362 
The net value of the assets kept in the bond fund: EUR 1 455 906 765 
The net value of the assets kept in the index fund: EUR 41 506 943 
 
AXA d.s.s., a.s. is the second largest asset management company in Slovakia’s retirement pension savings market and their share in this 
market (by the amount of assets managed) was, as the end of the past year, 26%. In 2014, the amount of assets managed by AXA d.s.s., 
a.s. in pension funds increased by 11,3% as compared to the previous year. The distribution of savers in the particular funds did not sig-
nificantly change by 31 December 2014. As many as 87% of savers decided to participate in the guaranteed fund, 13% prefer savings in 
non-guaranteed funds.

As at 31 december 2014 the company reached a positive financial result – profit after tax of EUR 4 307 227. It is a significant increase 
compared to last year. Based on a decision made by the General Meeting, the profits generated in 2014 will be, after creating the statutory 
reserve fund, reported as retained earnings from previous years. For the reported period, there was a positive impact upon financial results 
mainly thanks to the achieved payoff for funds’ appreciation. This payoff exceeded all expectations especially in the appreciation of stock in-
vestments. The revenues from appreciation increased by 120% as compared to the previous period. The decrease in revenues from fees co-
llected for maintaining client accounts reflected the decrease in savers’ contributions from 9% to 4% as required by the legislation in force.

More detailed information of the Company‘s financial standing and the financial result are contained in the 2013 Financial Statements, the 
full wording of which is included in this Annual Report. The Company’s annual financial statements as at 31 December 2013 have been 
audited by Mazars Slovensko, s.r.o., UDVA license No..236.
 

Information about the Company and its financial standing



136

AXA d.s.s., a.s. ENG
Company’s Governing Bodies, Shareholders, and the Auditor 
AXA d.s.s., a.s.

Board of Directors: 
General Manager:
Ing. Peter Socha, since 30.11.2005

Members of the Board of Directors:
Ing. Ľubor Vrlák, since 29 June 2012
Martin Vogl, since 30 October 2012
Sébastien Guidoni, since 4 December 2013

Supervisory Board:
Supervisory Board Members:
Jozef Eugeen Cyriel Van IN – Chairman, since 31 January 2013
Laurent Goudemant , since 25 September 2009
Jean-Yves Roger Marie LE BERRE, since 31 January 2013

Number, type, shape and nominal value of equities:
Number of shares:23 620 equities, book-entry 
Nominal value per share / Par value: EUR 2 537 

Depositary: 
UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s. with registered address at Želetavská, 14092 Prague 4 – Michle, Czech Republic, busi-
ness identification number 649 48 242, entered in the Prague City Court Register of Companies, section B, entry No. 3608, operating in 
the Slovak Republic through its organizational unit UniCredit Bank Czech and Slovakia, a.s., pobočka zahraničnej banky, with registered 
address at Šancová 1/A, 813 33 Bratislava, Slovak Republic, business identification number 47 251 336, entered in the Bratislava I District 
Court’s Register of Companies, section Po, entry No. 2310/B.

Auditor: 
Mazars Slovensko, s.r.o., Europeum Business Center, Suché mýto 1, 811 03 Bratislava, Business ID: 35 793 813, entered in the Bratislava 
I District Court’s Register of Companies, Section: Sro, Entry No.: 22257/B

Shareholder:
AXA životní pojišťovna a.s., Lazarská 13/8, 120 00 Prague 2, Czech Republic

Information on the Costs of Operations in Research and Development 
The Company incurs no costs in connection with research and development. 

Information on the Acquisition of Own Shares 
During the 2014 accounting period, the company did not acquire any of its own equities, interim certificates and/or temporary bonds, nor 
did it acquire any business shares, equities, interim certificates and/or temporary bonds of the parent accounting entity. 

Information on External Organization Units 
The company has established no foreign-based organizational unit.

The Accounting Entity’s Impact on the Environment and Employment Level
The company has no negative impact upon the environment. The company has no significant impact upon the region’s employment level. 

Material events with respect to the Annual Report that occurred after the Annual Report’s date 
No events of special importance occurred after the end of the reporting period for which this Annual Report has been prepared.

Company’s Governing Bodies, Shareholders, and the Auditor
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Supervisory Board Report 
The Supervisory Board has performed their tasks in compliance with Act 43/2004 Coll. on Old-Age Pension Savings and on amendments 
and supplements to certain laws, as amended by later legislation, in conformity with other legal statutes, and with the Company‘s Articles 
of Incorporation.

The Board of Directors has been providing the Supervisory Board with regular updates to information on the company’s operations and 
financial standing. In 2014 the Supervisory Board continuously monitored the company’s operations and business development and would 
provide the Board of Directors their views, opinions and suggestions regarding the identified issues, goals and facts. 

The Supervisory Board observes that both the Board of Directors and the company management have implemented all recommendations 
made by the Supervisory Board, thus taking into account the interests of the insurance plans’ participants as well as the interests of the 
shareholders. 

The Supervisory Board has received and discussed the Board of Directors’ report on company operations for 2014, the financial state-
ments, and the auditor‘s report. The Supervisory Board has disovered no shortcomings in the company’s financial management. 

The Supervisory Board recommended to the General Assembly that the company’s Financial Statements for 2014 be approved. 

Expectations for the next period 
The company‘s priority over the next period is to maintain its leading position in the Slovak pension savings market, responsibly cope with 
the fourth reopening the 2nd pillar and continue to cultivate their profitable economy. 

In 2015, the 2nd pillar started to pay off the very first pensions to its clients, individual methods of paying off are specified in annuity amen-
dment approved in 2014. In the period from 15 March to 15 June 2015 the 2nd pillar will be reopened and savers will be able to leave or 
join the 2nd pillar.

AXA d.s.s., a.s. intends to focus primarily on the quality of services throughout the duration of contracts for both the current and new clients. 
It is especially quality that may have a positive impact on the company’s further development in terms of permanent sustainability and the 
long-term satisfaction of the clients, shareholders as well as the employees.
 
Despite the ceaseless changes in legislation and reopening the second pillar, we still believe that the second pillar will maintain its irre-
placeable role in the pension savings market, especially for younger generations, and that it will, in a long-term perspective, sustain its 
attractiveness for savers.

Supervisory Board’s Report and Expectations for the Next Period
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Independent Auditor’s Report and Separate Financial Statements of AXA d.s.s., a.s as at 31 December 2014 prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards as amended by the European Union. 
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AXA d.s.s., a.s. 
 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
as at  31 December 2014 and  2013 (in euro)  
 

_____________________________________________________________________________
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 Note 01-12/2014  01-12/2013 

Income from administration of funds 3.1 12,547,137  8,430,580 
Fees and commissions 3.2 -2,643,649  -2,944,443 
Amortization of receivables from commissions 3.3 -1,022,206  0 
Personnel expenses 3.4 -503,961  -288,747 
Depreciation and amortization 3.5 -10,352  -10,352 
Release of adjustments 3.6 1,022,483  36,345 
Other operating costs, net  3.7 -5,183,912  -5,096,450 
Financial income,  net  3.8 104,907  57,295 
Loss from securities  0  -5,366 
       
 
Profit before tax 

 
4,310,447  178,862 

Income tax   3.9 -3,220  -2,752 
Profit after tax  4,307,227  176,110 
     
Subsequent measurement of AFS financial assets 
after tax 4.6  218,605  38,004 

Total comprehensive income  
 

4,525,832  214,114 
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AXA d.s.s., a.s. 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
as at 31 December 2014 (in euro)  
 

_____________________________________________________________________________
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 Note 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 

Assets     
Non-current assets     
Deferred acquisition costs  4.1 45,769,617  48,032,870 
Other intangible assets 4.2 12,941  23,293 

Total non-current assets  45,782,558  48,056,163 
     
Current assets     
Trade and other receivables 4.3 947,793  67,394 
Inventories  4.4 4,327  3,397 
Cash and cash equivalents 4.5 25,752  3,094,562 
Financial assets available for sale  4.6 20,978,836  12,670,255 

Total current assets 
 

21,956,708 
 

15,835,608 

Total assets 
 

67,739,266  63,891,771 
     
Equity and liabilities  

   
Equity     
Share capital 4.7 59,923,940  78,404,359 
Legal reserve fund 4.8 1,006,905  995,861 
Other capital funds 4.9 1,127,716  1,127,716 
Subsequent mesurment of AFS FA 4.6 256,609  38,004 
The result of operation of previous years and 
current period 4.10 4,307,227 

 
-18,469,375 

Total equity 
 

66,622,397 
 

62,096,565 
     
Current liabilities     
Trade and other payables 4.11 956,814  1,573,522 
Tax liabilities 4.12 160,055  221,684 

Total current liabilities 
 

1,116,869 
 

1,795,206 

Total equity and liabilities  67,739,266  63,891,771 
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AXA d.s.s., a.s. 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
as at 31 December 2014 (in euro) 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________
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Share 

capital 

Legal 
reserve 

fund 

Other 
capital 

funds 

Subsequent 
mesurment 
of AFS FA 

The profit or 
loss of 

previous years 
and current 

period 
Total 

equity 
Balance as at 1 January 2013 78,404,359 995,861 127,716  -18,645,485 60,882,451 
Changes in equity          
Increase of other capital funds   1,000,000   1,000,000 
Subsequent mesurment of AFS 
FA    38,004  38,004 
Profit of the period     176,110 176,110 
Balance as at 1 January 2014 78,404,359 995,861 1,127,716 38,004 -18,469,375 62,096,565 
Changes in equity           
Decrease in the share capital - 
the settlement of accrued losses -18,480,419    18,480,419 0 
Increase in the legal reserve 
fund from profit  17,611   -17,611  0 
Use of legal reserve fund for 
the settlement of accrued losses  -6,567   6,567 0 
Subsequent mesurment of AFS 
FA    218,605  218,605 
Profit of the period     4,307,227 4,307,227 
Balance as at 31 December 
2014 59,923,940 1,006,905 1,127,716 256,609 4,307,227 66,622,397 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 (in euro) 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________
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 Note  01-12/2014  01-12/2013 
      
Result before tax   4,310,447  178,862 
      
Adjustments for non-cash transactions      
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs 3.2  2,508,416  2,793,610 
Depreciation and amortization of assets 3.5  10,352  10,352 
Provision to receivables 3.6  -1,022,483  -36,345 
Depreciation and amortization of assets 3.8  -113,675  -64,518 
Capital revaluation of financial assets 4.6  146,229  38,004 
Loss from the sale of financial assets   0  5,366 
Revenues from the sale of non-current assets   -160  -60 
Provisions   0  -1,335,000 
Profit from operating activities before changes in working 
capital  

 
5,839,126  1,590,271 

      
Changes in working capital      
Increase in the accounts of deferred acquisition costs 4.1  -245,163  -406,423 
Increase in trade and other receivables 4.3  142,104  147,497 
Decrease in inventories 4.4  -930  4,326 
Decrease in payables  4.11  -681,217  -122,976 
Increase in the deferred tax liability 4.12  72,376  0 
Cash flows from operating activities   5,126,296  1,212,695 
      
Interest received   152,374  25,099 
Income tax paid 3.9  -340  -2,752 
Net cash flows from operating activities   5,278,330  1,235,042 
      
Cash flows from investing activity      
Proceeds from the sale of non-current assets   140  60 
Purchase of securities   -555,794  -13,684,618 
Proceeds from the sale of financial assets   0  1,071,865 
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets   -292,612  -292,612 
Net cash flows from investing activities    -848,406  -13,977,230 
      
      
Increase of other capital funds 4.9  1,000,000  1,000,000 
Expenses from decrease in other capital funds 4.9  -1,000,000  0 
Net cash flows from financing activities   0  1,000,000 
      
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   -3,068,810  -10,401,100 
      
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 4.5  3,094,562  13,495,662 
      
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 4.5  25,752  3,094,562 
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NOTES 
to the interim financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by EU as at 31 December 2014 

 
7 

 

1. INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY  

Establishment  

AXA d.s.s., a.s. (previously Winterthur d.s.s., a.s., original name CREDIT SUISSE LIFE & PENSIONS 
d.s.s., a.s.) (hereafter „the Company”) was established on 14/07/2004 based on a Foundation Deed   
in the form of a Notarial Deed N 173/2004, Nz 58075/2004 from 14/07/2004. On 20/07/2004, the 
Company’s Founder applied for a license to establish and operate a pension fund management company 
from the Slovak Financial Market Authority. The license was granted on 7 October 2004. The Company 
was incorporated in the Commercial Register on 15 October 2004, under No.:  3441/B, Section Sa,  with 
corporate ID: 35 903 821, tax ID: 2021892961. 

In December 2006 the whole Winterthur Group was acquired by French company AXA. As a result of 
the merger since 1 January 2007AXA become the world second largest insurance company. AXA uses a 
single-brand strategy. For that reason, the business name of all companies within the Group changed to 
AXA as of   
15 March 2007. As a result, the business name Winterthur d.s.s., a.s. was changed to AXA d.s.s., a.s. 

 

Main business activities   

The main Company’s activity is the establishment and management of pension funds to carry out 
retirement pension savings (hereinafter also “sds“) in accordance with the Act no. 43/2004 Coll. as 
amended.  
 

Effective since 1 September 2011, the Company AXA d.s.s., a.s. has entrusted AXA Services, s.r.o. 
located at Kolárska 6, 811 06 Bratislava, corporate ID: 35 893 940, registered in the Commercial Register 
of District Court Bratislava I, Section: Sro, Insert: 32514/B, with the execution of the following activities 
associated with the management of pension funds managed by AXA d.s.s., a.s.:  
1. The scope of Management:  

a. management of accountancy of the pension fund, 
b. fulfilment of tax obligations associated with the assets in pension fund, 
c. settlement of liabilities resulting from legal relationships with third parties and recovery of 

receivables, which the pension fund management company registers against third parties in 
connection with the acquisition and management of assets of pension fund, 

d. information of the participants and beneficiaries of the retirement pensions and settlement of 
their complaints and 

2. Promotion and advertising of pension funds.  

 
DSS Funds 

In 2005 the Company established pension funds (hereafter „the Funds“). The Funds were established on 
the day of crediting the first contribution from the Social Insurance Company, i.e. on 22/03/2005. On 
01/04/2012, the Company established new pension fund – indexový dôchodkový fond and in line with 
the amendments of law related to sds the names of the funds were changed.   

Effective from 01/07/2013, Akciový a.d.f., AXA d.s.s., a.s, had chandged its name to Akciový 
negarantovaný a.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.. 
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On 1 July 2013, in accordance with article 79a paragraph 5 of Act Nr. 43/2004 Coll., the Company 
merged fund Zmiešaný z.d.f., AXA d.s.s., a.s and Akciový negarantovaný a.d.f., AXA d.s.s., a.s. into one 
unguaranteed pension fund.  Zmiešaný z.d.f., AXA d.s.s., a.s. was hereby wound up without liquidation. 
The Successor fund became Akciový negarantovaný a.d.f., AXA d.s.s., a.s from 1 July 2013.    

Effective from 01/08/2013, the names of the Funds changed as follows: 
- - Indexový i.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s. to Indexový negarantovaný a.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s. and  
- - Dlhopisový d.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s. to Dlhopisový garantovaný d.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s. 
 

Currently, the Company manages the following pension funds: 

- Akciový  negarantovaný a.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s. (till 30.06.2013 Akciový  a.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.) 
- Dlhopisový garantovaný d.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s. (till 31.07.2013 Dlhopisový d.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.) 
- Indexový negarantovaný a.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s. (till 31.07.2013 Indexový i.d.f. AXA d.s.s., a.s.) 
 
Board of Directors 

Chairman of Board of Directors:   
Ing. Peter Socha, from 30.11.2005 
 
Members of the Board of Directors:  
Ing. Ľubor Vrlák, from 29.06.2012 
Martin Vogl, from 30.10.2012 
Sébastien Guidoni, from 4.12.2013  
 
 
Supervisory Board 

Chairman of the Supervisory Board  
Jozef Eugeen Cyriel Van IN, from 31.1.2013 
 
Members of the Supervisory Board: 
Laurent Goudemant , from 25.9.2009 
Jean-Yves Roger Marie LE BERRE, from 31.01.2013 
 
 
Company headquarters  

Kolárska 6, 811 06 Bratislava  
 
 
Depositary 

Effective from 1 December 2013, the depositary of the Company and pension funds became UniCredit 
Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, with registered seat at Želetavská, 14092 Prague 4-Michle, Czech 
Republic, identification number  649 48 242, registered in the Commercial Register of Municipal Court 
in Prague I, Section:B, Insert: 3608 in the Slovak Republic, acting through a branch of UniCredit Bank 
Czech and Slovakia, a.s., branch of a foreign bank, with registered seat at Šancová 1 / A, 813 33 
Bratislava, identification number  47 251 336, registered in the Commercial Register of District Court 
Bratislava I, Section: Po, Insert: 2310 / B.  
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Until this date the depositary of the pension funds was UniCredit Bank Slovakia, a.s., with registered seat 
at Šancová 1/A, 813 33 Bratislava, identification number 00 681 709, registered in the Commercial 
Register of District Court Bratislava I, Section: Sa, Insert: 34/B.  
 
The reason for this change was the cross-border merger of sucessor depositary with the predecessor one, 
who was wound up with effect from 1 December 2013. 
 
 
Share capital  

As of 31/12/2014, the share capital of the Company was 59,923,940 EUR and consisted of 23,620 
ordinary shares (as of 31/12/2013 the share capital consisted from 23,620 shares in total amount of 
78,404,359 EUR). The nominal value of one share is 2,537 EUR (as at 31 December the nominal value of 
one share in the amount of 23,018 shares was 3,319.19 EUR and the nominal value of one share in the 
amount of 602 shares was 3,320 EUR). 
 
The sole reason for the decrease in the share capital of the Company in 2014 was to resolve the losses of 
the Company and the goal was exclusively to cover the accrued losses, which the Company recognized as 
of 12 December 2014. 
 
 
Shareholders 

The sole shareholder of the Company as of 31/12/2014 (31/12/2013) is: 

-  AXA životní pojišťovna a.s.,  
 Lazarská 13/8, 120 00  Praha 2, Česká republika 
 

Consolidated Group 

The Company is part of a consolidation group (hereafter "the Group") where the parent company is the 
consolidating entity. The parent company is part of a consolidation group, where the consolidating entity 
is AXA, S.A., 25 Avenue Matignon, 75008 Paris, France.   
The consolidated financial statements are available at the seat and on web-site of the parent company.  

The Company is not a partner with unlimited liability in any other company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



147

AXA d.s.s., a.s. 
 
NOTES 
to the interim financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by EU as at 31 December 2014 

 
10 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of the presentation  

The Company‘s interim financial statements consist of the statement of financial position as of 
31/12/2014, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and 
notes to financial statements for the period from 01/01/2014 to 31/12/2014 („the financial statements“). 

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
as adopted by EU (hereinafter „IFRS“).  

These financial statements were prepared under the going concern principle. 

The financial statements at 31/12/2013 were approved by the General Assembly on 25/06/2014. 

Amounts in these financial statements are presented in EUR and are rounded to whole EUR (unless stated 
otherwise). 

The accounting policies and general accounting principles have been consistently applied by the 
Company. 
 
 
Application of new international standards and interpretations 

The Company has been applying the following new standards and interpretations since 1 January 2014: 
 
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: 
Presentation (issued in December 2011 and effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2014 
or later). The amendment adds application guidance to IAS 32, in order to eliminate inconsistencies in 
the application of certain criteria of offsetting. This includes clarifying the meaning of "currently has a 
legally enforceable right to offsetting" and the fact that some systems of mutual settlement in gross 
amounts may be considered equivalent to net settlement values. (The Group currently reviews the impact 
of the amendments on its financial statements). 

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements (issued in May 2011 and effective for annual periods 
beginning on 1 January 2013 or later except for the European Union, which approved this standard’s 
effect from 1 January 2014). This standard supersedes all the provisions on control and consolidation in 
IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and SIC-12 Consolidation - special purpose 
entities.  IFRS 10 changes the definition of control so that when determining the control, the same criteria 
are applied to all entities. This definition is supported by many application guidelines. (This standard did 
not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.) 

IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (issued in May 2011 and effective for annual periods beginning on 
1 January 2013 or later except for the European Union, which approved this standard’s effect 
from 1 January 2014). This Standard supersedes IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly 
controlled entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. Changes in the definitions have reduced 
the number of types of joint ventures to two: joint operations and joint ventures. Policy choice of the 
method of proportionate consolidation for jointly controlled entities in the existing accounting methods 
has been canceled. Accounting under the equity method is mandatory for participants in joint ventures. 
(This standard did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.) 
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IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities (issued in May 2011 and effective for annual periods 
beginning on 1 January 2013 or later except for the European Union, which approved this standard’s 
effect from 1 January 2014). This standard applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, in a 
joint venture, in an associate or an unconsolidated structured entity. It replaces the disclosure 
requirements, which could be found in IAS 28, Investments in associates. IFRS 12 requires an entity to 
disclose information to help readers of the financial statements to evaluate the nature, risks and financial 
effects associated with the entity's interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and unconsolidated 
structured entities. To meet these objectives, the new standard requires disclosures in a number of areas, 
including significant judgements and assumptions made in determining whether an entity controls, jointly 
controls or significantly influences other entities by its interests, extended information on the share of 
minority shareholders or partners on the company's activities and cash flows, summary financial 
information on subsidiaries with significant minority interests, and detailed disclosures of interests in 
unconsolidated structured entities. (This standard did not have an impact on the financial statements of 
the Company.) 

Investment companies - IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (issued October 31, 2012 and effective for 
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2014 or later). The amendment introduced the definition of an 
investment company as an entity that (i) obtains funds from investors to enable them to provide 
investment management services, (ii) commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest the 
funds solely for the purpose of capital appreciation or generating income from capital, and (iii) measures 
and evaluates its investments at fair value. The investment company will have to account for their 
subsidiaries at fair value, change of which is recognized as part of the profit and loss account, and include 
to consolidation only those subsidiaries that provide services related to the investment business. 
Amendments to IFRS 12 introduced new disclosures, including indications of any significant judgements 
that have been made in assessing whether a given entity is an investment company, as well as information 
on financial or other assistance for unconsolidated subsidiaries, whether planned or already granted. (This 
standard did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.) 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: 
The amendment to the transitional provisions - IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 (issued in 
June 2012 and effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2013 or later, except for 
the European Union, which approved this standard’s effect from 1 January 2014).  The 
amendment clarifies the transitional provisions of IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements.  
Entities that apply IFRS 10 should reconsider control on the first day of the annual accounting period in 
which IFRS 10 is applied for the first time, and if the conclusion about the need for consolidation under 
IFRS 10 differs from the conclusion on the basis of IAS 27 and SIC 12, it is required to correct the 
immediately preceding comparative period (ie 2012 for entities whose financial year coincides with the 
calendar year and which will apply IFRS 10 in 2013), if this can be implemented in reality. The 
amendment also provides additional transitional reliefs present in IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial 
Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, by 
limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information only on the immediately preceding 
comparative period. Furthermore, the amendment repeals the requirement to present information for prior 
periods relating to unconsolidated structured entities for periods before the initial application of IFRS 12. 
(This standard did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.) 

IAS 27, individual financial statements (issued in May 2011 and effective for annual periods 
beginning on 1 January 2013 or later, except for the European Union, which approved this 
standard’s effect from 1 January 2014) - the aim of the amendment is to define the accounting 
and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when 
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an entity prepares separate financial statements. Guidance on control and consolidated financial 
statements have been transferred to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements. (This standard did not 
have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.) 

Amendment to IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (issued in May 2011 and 
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2013 or later, except for the European Union, 
which approved this standard’s effect from 1 January 2014). Amendment to IAS 28 resulted from the 
IASB's project about joint ventures. In discussions on this project, the IASB decided to incorporate the 
accounting for joint ventures using the equity method into IAS 28 because this method is applicable to 
joint ventures as well as associates. Apart from this single exception the other provisions remain 
unchanged. (This standard did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.) 

Amendments to IAS 36 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures of Non-Financial Assets (issued in May 
2013 and effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2014 or later). The amendment removes 
the disclosure of recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit containing goodwill or intangible assets 
with indefinite useful life when there is no need to form impairment. (This standard did not have an 
impact on the financial statements of the Company.) 
 
Amendments to IAS 39 – Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting (issued in 
June 2013 and effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2014 or later). The amendment 
allows for continued hedge accounting when a derivative is a security tool but its counter-party changes 
due to the transition to a system of central clearing of derivatives based on the requirements of law, if 
certain conditions are met. (This standard did not have an impact on the financial statements of the 
Company.) 
 
 
New accounting standards, which the Company does not apply early 
 
The following new standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for 
annual periods beginning 1 January 2015 or later, has not been adopted early by the Company. 

IFRS 9, Financial instruments: Classification and measurement. issued in July 2014 and effective for 
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2018 or later). 

Key features of the standard are: 

•  Financial assets are for valuation purposes required to be classified into two categories: those that will 
subsequently be measured at fair value, and assets that will subsequently be measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest rate method. The classification is to be made at the time of acquisition 
and initial recognition of financial assets and depends on the entity's business model for managing its 
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. 

•  Financial assets will subsequently be measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate 
method only if it is a debt instrument and both (i) the objective of the entity's business model is to hold 
the asset to collect the contractual cash flows and (ii) the contractual cash flows from these assets 
represent only payments of principal and interest (ie it only has "basic loan features"). All other debt 
instruments are to be measured at fair value, change of which is recognized as part of the profit and 
loss account. 

•  All equity instruments are to be subsequently measured at fair value. Equity instruments held for trade 
will be measured at fair value, change of which is recognized as part of the profit and loss account. 
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For all other stocks and shares, the entity will have the option at the time of initial recognition to 
irrevocably decide to recognize the realized and unrealized gains or losses from revaluation through 
other comprehensive income or loss, and not as part of the profit and loss account. Recycling of 
revaluation to profit and loss will not be possible. This decision will be possible to be done separately 
for each acquired equity and share investment. Dividends are to be reported as part of profit or loss 
only if they represent return on investment. 

•  Most of the requirements of IAS 39 on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities were 
transferred without change to IFRS 9. The main change is the obligation of an entity to recognize the 
effects of changes in credit risk of own financial liabilities measured at fair value, change of which is 
recognized as profit or loss in other comprehensive income. 

•  The requirements of hedge accounting method have been modified to provide a better link with risk 
management. The standard provides entities the choice between applying IFRS 9 and continuing the 
application of IAS 39 to all hedging relationships, as the current standard does not deal with macro-
hedge accounting. 

(The Group currently reviews the impact of the amendments on its financial statements). This standard 
has not yet been approved by the European Union. 
 
IFRIC 21 - Levies (issued 20 May 2013 and effective in the EU for annual periods beginning on 17 
June 2014, or later). This interpretation clarifies the accounting for levies, which are not income tax. The 
event giving rise to the obligation to pay levy is an event stipulated by legislation under which these 
levies apply. The fact that, for economic reasons, a company may be forced to continue its activities in 
the future, or that it prepares the financial statements on a going concern basis, does not give rise to 
liability. The same rules also apply to annual and interim financial statements. Applying the interpretation 
to the emissions trading schemes is voluntary. (The Group currently reviews the impact of the 
amendments on its financial statements).  

Amendments to IAS 19 - Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions (issued in November 
2013 and effective for annual periods beginning on 1 July 2014 or later) - permits an entity to 
recognize employee contributions to a program as a reduction of current service cost in the 
period in which the related service is rendered to the employees (instead of assigning the 
contribution to years worked). This applies as long as the employee contribution is independent of the 
number of years worked. (The Group currently reviews the impact of the amendments on its 
financial statements). This amendment has not yet been approved by the European Union. 
 
Improvements to IFRS 2012 (issued in December 2013 and effective for annual periods 
beginning on 1 July 2014 or later, unless otherwise stated in the text). Improvements consist of 
changes to seven standards. Amendments to IFRS 2 provide clarification of the definition of "conditions 
for entitlement to remuneration" and a separate definition for "performance conditions" and "terms of 
service". The amendment is effective for share-based payments for which the date of grant is 1 July 2014 
or later. IFRS 3 was amended with the goal to clarify that (1) the obligation to settle a contingent 
purchase price that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as a financial liability or 
equity instrument based on the definitions in IAS 32 and (2) any contingent payments, financial and non-
financial, which are not classified as equity instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date 
of the financial statements, and the change in fair value is recognized in the income statement. The 
amendments to IFRS 3 are effective for business combinations with acquisition date of 1 July 2014 or 
later. IFRS 8 requires (1) the disclosure of the judgement by management in the case of aggregation of 
operating segments, including a description of the individual aggregated segments and economic 
indicators that were considered in determining that the aggregated segments had similar economic 
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characteristics and (2) a reconciliation of segment assets to the assets of the entity if a segment asset is 
recognized. The basis for conclusions to IFRS 13 was adjusted so as to clarify that the aim of abolishing 
some paragraphs in IAS 39 within the issue of IFRS 13 was not to remove the possibility of short-term 
assets and liabilities measurement by invoiced nominal value in cases where the impact of discounting is 
not significant. Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 had the goal to clarify the calculation of the gross 
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation if the entity applies a revaluation model. IAS 24 has been 
modified to make a related party be recognized as an entity providing key management personnel to an 
entity preparing financial statements or to its parent company ("Management Company"), and to require 
disclosure of the amounts that are charged for the services by the Management Company to the entity 
preparing the financial statements. These amendments have not yet been approved by the European 
Union. (The Group currently reviews the impact of the amendments on its financial statements). 

Improvements to IFRS 2013 (issued in December 2013 and effective for annual periods beginning on 
1 July 2014 or later). The improvements consist of four changes to the standards. The basis for 
conclusions to IFRS 1 was modified to make clear that, even when the new version of a standard is not 
yet compulsory, but its application is possible in an earlier period, the entity applying IFRS for the first 
time may choose to use either the old or the new version of the standard, provided that it shall apply the 
same version in all the presented periods. IFRS 3 was amended to make it clear that it does not apply to 
the accounting for the establishment of a joint venture under IFRS 11. The amendment also clarifies that 
the exemption from the scope of IFRS 3 applies only to financial statements of the joint venture itself. 
The amendment to IFRS 13 clarifies that the exemption for portfolio under IFRS 13, allowing the entity 
to use fair value measurement of the financial assets and liabilities on a net basis, applies to all contracts 
(including contracts to buy or sell non-financial items), to which IAS 39 or IFRS 9 apply. IAS 40 clarifies 
that IAS 40 and IFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive. The guidance in IAS 40 helps entities to distinguish 
between investments in property and property used by the owner. The guidance in IAS 40 helps entities 
to distinguish between investments in property and property used by the owner. These amendments have 
not yet been approved by the European Union. (The Group currently reviews the impact of the 
amendments on its financial statements). 
 
IFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts (standard issued in January 2014 and effective for annual 
periods beginning on 1 January 2016 or later). In the transition to IFRS, IFRS 14 allows entities that 
apply IFRS for the first time to continue to report the amounts relating to the regulation of prices 
according to their national standards. To improve compatibility with entities that already apply IFRS and 
do not report such amounts, the standard requires that the impact of price regulation be presented 
separately from other items. An entity that already prepares its financial statements under IFRS cannot 
apply this standard. This standard has not yet been approved by the European Union. (The details of 
impact (only concerns the first financial statements of an accounting unit, which applies IFRS for the first 
time.) 
 
Accounting for the acquisition of interests in joint operations - IFRS 11 (issued on 6 May 2014 and 
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2016 or later). This amendment provides new 
guidance on the accounting for the acquisition of interests in joint operations constituting a business. This 
amendment has not yet been approved by the European Union. (The Group currently reviews the impact 
of the amendments on its financial statements). 
 
Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation - Amendments to IAS 16 and 
IAS 38 (issued on 12 May 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2016 or 
later). In this amendment the IASB clarified that the use of yield methods for calculating the depreciation 
and amortisation of assets is not appropriate, because the revenues generated from the activities in which 
the assets are used generally also reflect factors other than the use of the economic benefits embodied in 
the given assets. This amendment has not yet been approved by the European Union. (The Group 
currently reviews the impact of the amendment on its financial statements). 
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IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers* (issued on 28 May 2014 and effective for annual 
periods beginning on 1 January 2017 or later).  This new standard establishes the principle that 
revenues be recognised in the transaction price at the time the goods or services are transferred to the 
customer.  Any tied goods or services which are distinguishable, must be recognised separately and 
rebates or refunds of the sales price must be allocated to each item.  If the price is for any reason variable, 
a minimum value, at which it is highly probable that it will not be written off, must be recognised.  The 
cost of acquisition of customer contracts must be capitalized and amortized over the period 
during which the company derives economic benefits of the contract with the customer. This 
standard has not yet been approved by the European Union. (The Group currently reviews the impact of 
the amendment on its financial statements). 
 
Agriculture: Bearer plants - Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 (issued on 30 June 2014 and effective 
for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2016).  The amendment changes the way of financial 
reporting in connection with bearer plants such as grapes, natural rubber and oil palms, which shall be 
accounted for in the same way as non-current tangible assets, as their cultivation is similar to production. 
Therefore, under the amendment they fall within the scope of IAS 16 and not IAS 41. Crops of bearer 
plants remain under the scope of IAS 41. These amendments have not yet been approved by the European 
Union.  
 
Equity method in the separate financial statements - IAS 27 (issued on 12 August 2014 and effective 
for annual periods beginning 1 January 2016 or later).  The amendment will permit an entity to use the 
equity method for the purposes of separate financial statements in accounting for investments in 
subsidiaries and associates. This amendment has not yet been approved by the European Union. (The 
Group currently reviews the impact of the amendments on its financial statements). 
 
Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture - Amendments to 
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning on 1 
January 2016 or later). This amendment addresses the discrepancy between the requirements of IFRS 10 
and IAS 28 on sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The 
most important consequence is that in the case of a contribution of a business, the profit or loss shall be 
recognized in full. Partial profit or loss shall be recognized if the subject of the transaction is an asset that 
is not a business, even if the asset is owned by the operational subsidiary. These amendments have not 
yet been approved by the European Union. (The Group currently reviews the impact of the amendment 
on its financial statements). 
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Annual improvements to IFRS for the year 2014 (issued on 25 September 2014 and effective for 
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2016 or later). The amendments affect 4 standards. The aim of 
the amendments to IFRS 5 was to clarify that the change in the method of disposal of financial assets 
(reclassification from the group "available for sale" to the "held for distribution" or vice versa) does not 
constitute a change in the plan of sale or distribution and as such does not have to be recognized. 
Amendments to IFRS 7 contain guidance that shall assist the management of an entity in determining 
whether the terms of the agreement on the management of financial assets acquired by contribution are 
going concern for the purposes of disclosure under IFRS 7. The amendment also clarifies that the 
disclosure of offsetting under IFRS 7 is not required for interim financial statements, provided that it is 
otherwise not required by IAS 34. The amendment to IAS 19 provides a clarification that in the case of 
benefit obligations upon termination of employment, when deciding on the discount rate, the existence of 
a developed market with high quality corporate bonds, or on which interest rates on government bonds to 
use, the currency in which liabilities are denominated shall be used, not the country in which they were 
incurred. IAS 34 will require a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to "information 
disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial report". These amendments have not yet been approved by 
the European Union. (The Group currently reviews the impact of the amendments on its financial 
statements). 
 
 
The day of recognition of elements of financial statements 
 
The day of recognition is: 
 
- the day of payment or acceptance of a cash payment, 
- the day of purchase or sale of foreign currency, 
- the day of payment or drawing from client’s account, 
- the day of negotiation of trade with securities, 
- the day of the transfer or cancellation of ownership title, 
- the day when a receivable and payable are created, changed or expired. 
 
 
Classification of contracts 

 
The pension saving contracts closed with the clients are not contracts transferring significant financial or 
insurance risks and are therefore classified as service contracts under IAS 18. 
 

Accounting estimates and judgments made by the Company´s management  
 
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make some estimates and judgements 
that affect the carrying value of the Company´s assets and liabilities, the recognition of contingent assets 
and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and recognition of revenues and costs during the period.  

Future events and their impact cannot be assessed with certainty. Therefore, the accounting estimates 
require experience in assessment; the estimates used in preparing the financial statements will change 
upon occurrence of new events based on new experience, information and changes in the operating 
environment of the Company. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The Company estimates for instance allowances for doubtful debts, inventories and non-current assets, 
useful life over which the non-current tangible and intangible assets are depreciated/amortized and 
deferred acquisition costs. 
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The Company defers the acquisition costs related to pension saving contracts. The costs comprise of 
commissions paid to agents and administrators of pension saving agents’ network.  

To determine deferred acquisition costs the Company considers factors affecting future development of 
portfolio, such as:  

- mortality 

- probability of contract termination – fluctuation between the pension fund management  
companies – possible future outflow of pension savers from the portfolio due to change to 
another pension fund management company. 

The possible impact of change in assumptions to the amount of deferred acquisition costs is quantified in 
note 4.1.  Since the operating conditions of pension fund management companies are subject to strict 
regulation and are significantly dependent on the parameters set out in legislation, the activity of the 
Company may be affected by possible changes of the pension system principles. 
 
Foreign currency transactions 

Functional currency of the Company is euro (EUR). The functional currency is the currency of primary 
economic environment in which the Company performs its activities. The financial statements have been 
prepared in the functional currency, i.e. in EUR. 

Transactions in foreign currency performed by the Company include transaction in a currency other than 
the functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using 
the European Central Bank’s (ECB) reference exchange rates applicable at the day of transaction. 

The following exchange rates were used to determine foreign exchange rate differences as at 31 
December 2014: 
USD = 1.2141 EUR  
 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS  

Deferred acquisition costs  

The Company defers the acquisition costs related to pension saving contracts. The costs comprise of 
commissions paid to agents and administrators of pension saving agents’ network.  

Deferred acquisition costs disclosed in the financial statements present the commissions paid for 
intermediation of pension saving contracts that relates to future accounting periods. 

 The Company regularly performs impairment test of deferred 
acquisition costs as of balance sheet date.  During impairment test company performs recoverability test 
to assess whether the expenses incurred on a contract of pension saving will be covered in future by 
incomes arising from this contract, test is based on discounted estimated future cash flows (including 
administrative costs) relating to this contract. The impairment is recognized in costs. If the estimated 
future income is lower than the costs incurred, it is fully recognized in expensed. 
 
Other intangible assets 

Other intangible assets include mainly software. Other intangible assets are valued in historical cost 
reduced by amortization and impairment. VAT not claimed is the part of the acquisition cost of other 
intangible assets.  
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Costs of other intangible assets which do not meet the criteria for capitalization in accordance with IAS 
38 are directly expensed in the period when the asset is put in use, and are disclosed as operating costs in 
the statement of comprehensive income.  

 
Amortization and impairment 

Amortization scheme of deferred acquisition costs (DAC) is non-linear, is based on projections of total 
man-years at the time of activation of DAC and their changes in each year of the contracts, based on 
assumptions about future development of contracts valid at the time of activation. 
 
Amortization and impairment of other intangible assets is reported in the statement of comprehensive 
income linearly over the expected useful life of each item of other intangible assets.  The expected useful 
life of the software is 1 – 4 years, in accordance with license conditions.  The Company regularly 
assesses whether there is evidence of impairment of other intangible assets, ie. if its carrying value is 
higher than its recoverable amount. In case of impairment, the asset is re-measured to reflect its realizable 
value. 
 
 
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
Assets owned by the Company 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. The acquisition cost of property, plant and equipment also includes not claimed VAT. 
 
Subsequent costs 

Subsequent costs are included in the acquisition cost of property, plant and equipment when incurred, if it 
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company from the enhancement of the assets 
and the costs can be reliably measured. 

Assets or subsequent costs that do not meet criteria for recognition under IAS 16, are expensed when the 
asset is put in use and are recognized in the comprehensive income statement in operating expense.  
 
Depreciation 

Depreciation charges are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis 
over the expected useful life on each item included in „Property, plant and equipment“. The estimated 
useful lives are as follows: 

- computers – 4 years 

- fixture – 6 years 

- leased cars – 4 years 

- purchased cars – 4 years 

- subsequent cost of leased fixed assets – 5 years 
   
Unless they are immaterial, the carrying value and the useful life are reviewed annually. 

The Company regularly reviews property, plant and equipment in order to identify any indication that an 
asset may be impaired (carrying value is higher than net realizable value). In case of impairment, the 
asset is re-measured to reflect its realizable value. 

 



156

AXA d.s.s., a.s. 
 
NOTES 
to the interim financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by EU as at 31 December 2014 

 
19 

 

FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES 
 
Initial recognition 
 
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the date of the transaction arrangement, 
which is the date of agreement on the purchase or sale. 
 
 
Initial measurement  

The classification of the financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose for 
which the financial assets or liabilities were purchased or it depends on the character of financial assets 
and liabilities. The financial instruments, except financial instruments recognized at fair value through 
statement of comprehensive income, are measured at initial recognition at fair value including transaction 
costs. 

 
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 
 
a) Financial assets 

Financial assets (or part of financial assets or part of the group of similar financial assets) are 
derecognized when: 

• the rights to the cash flow from financial asset expire, or 

• the Company transferred the rights to the cash flow from the assets, or takeover obligation to pay cash 
flow without significant delay to third party (“pass-through arrangements”) or 

• the Company transferred substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the assets, or the 
Company did not transfer all the risks and rewards associated with the assets, even did not retain these 
risks and rewards, however it transferred the control over these assets. 

If the Company transferred all its rights to cash flow from assets or closed pass-through agreement, but 
nor transferred all risks and rewards associated with these assets neither retained them, even did not 
transferred control over the assets, the assets are recognized under the continuing involvement of the 
Company. The continuing involvement in the form of guarantee related to the transfer assets is measured 
at the lower of original carrying value and maximum expected consideration which could be required. 
 
 
b) Financial liabilities 

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is cancelled or expired. 
An exchange between existing lenders of debt instrument with substantially different terms shall be 
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new 
financial liability. Similarly, should be recorded a substantial modification of the terms of an existing 
financial liability. The difference between the carrying amounts shall be recognized in statement of 
comprehensive income. 

If the Company owns more than one item of the same financial assets, the disposal of investment is done 
based on the weighted average method. 
 
 
The company is allowed to maintain three portfolios of financial assets – securities: 
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1. Held to maturity investments 

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
an entity intends and is able to hold to maturity and that do not meet the definition of loans and 
receivables.  

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at fair value including transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost.  Discount and premium are released through profit and loss 
during the period from initial recognition to maturity. 
 
2. Available-for-sale financial assets (Realizable securities) 

Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets are any non-derivative financial assets designated on initial 
recognition as available for sale or any other instruments that are not classified as as loans and 
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.  

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value in the balance sheet. Fair value changes on 
AFS assets are recognised directly in equity, through the statement of changes in equity, except for 
interest or premium on AFS assets (which are recognised in profit and loss on an effective yield basis).   
 
3. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss  
 

This category has two sub-categories: 
- securities held for trading  
- derivatives   

 

This category includes financial assets that are designated on initial recognition as one to be measured at 
fair value with fair value changes in profit or loss, if they are acquired or held for the purpose of selling in 
the short term or for which there is a recent pattern of short-term profit taking are held for trading. 
Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are used as a hedging instrument.   
 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets are excluded from 
the value of financial assets valued through profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized and subsequently measured at 
fair value.  
 
The fair value of a security is determined as the market price quoted on the latest valuation date, if it is 
anticipated that a security can be sold at the market price. If the quoted market price is not readily 
available, fair value is determined by a valuation technique that represents the sum of future outflows and 
inflows discounted by using of most frequent interest rate related to the similar issuer´s instrument with 
the similar features or interest rate decreasing the nominal value of the instrument to its selling price.  
 
As a primary source of fair value measurement the Company uses the market price at the stock exchange.  
If the market price is not available, the financial information system Bloomberg is used.  The securities 
are measured at the average (MID) purchase and salling prices of security.  
 
Securities held for trading are included in this category based on the intention with which they 
were purchased. Subsequently there is no transfer to other portfolios.  
 
Securities held for trading at the acquisition date are measured at their fair value, which does not include 
transaction costs directly attributable to their acquisition or issue.  Subsequently they are measured at fair 
value.  That is determined based on their quoted market price at the balance sheet date. If quoted market 
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price is not available and if there is no active market, fair value is determined by using of valuation 
models or discounted cash flow techniques. 
 
Changes in fair values of securities held for trading are recognized in the income statement.  
 
Debt securities, generating interest income, increase their value monthly (on the last day of the month) by 
accrued interest income. 
 
Derivatives  
Derivative financial instruments are held for trading. Underlying instruments of futures transactions in 
foreign currency are recorded off-balance sheet. Derivatives are measured at fair value; differences from 
revaluation are booked in the accounts of costs and revenues, with direct impact on the income statement. 
 
All securities are measured at the average price (if there are different purchase prices), are sold 
at the average purchase prices (ie, FIFO method is applied on the sale of securities). Interest is 
linearly accrued; amortization is determined by usning of effective interest rate.   
 
Securities are recorded on the transaction agreement date, the Company records receivable or payable till 
the cash settlement of transaction. Initially the acquisition is recorded and subsequently portfolio 
valuations, through an operating system for tracking and recording of securities. 
 
 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 

At each date on which the Company prepare financial statements, the Company assesses whether there is 
objective evidence that value of financial assets could be impaired.  Financial assets is impaired and 
impairment loss is recognized only if there is one or more evidences that occured after the initial 
recognition of the financial asset and those events have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of 
the financial asset or group of financial assets that are reliably measurable. The objective evidence that a 
financial asset is impaired includes the following information:   

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor 
- - Breach of contract, such as delays or breach of duty in payment 
- - The probability of bankruptcy or other financial reorganization of the debtor 
- - Disappearance of an active market for the financial asset due to the financial 

                         difficulties or 
- History in repayment of debts which indicates that the total  
       nominal amount of the asset will not be repaid. 

The Company assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment for each individual item of 
financial assets that is individually significant.  If there is objective evidence that there is impairment of 
loans and other financial receivables carried at amortized cost, the amount of the loss is the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows,which the Company in relation to financial assets expects , discounted by original effective interest 
rate.  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through an allowance account and the amount of the 
loss is recognized in the income statement. 
  
Similar principle is applied in case of securities available for sale. If there is objective evidence for 
impairment, then cumulative loss in the amount of difference between the acquisition cost and fair value, 
less any previous impairment losses on financial assets already recognized in the income statement, is 
removed from equity and recognized in the income statement. The impairment loss recognised in relation 
to equity securities could not be subsequently cancelled. Loss on impairment of debt securities in the 
financial statements may be cancelled.  



159

AXA d.s.s., a.s. 
 
NOTES 
to the interim financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by EU as at 31 December 2014 

 
22 

 

 
Impairment may occur in relation to securities held to maturity and securities available for sale. That 
evidence is not required in relation to securities measured through profit or loss because they are 
measured through the profit or loss.  
 
Further, the impairment is determined differently for different type of securities.  
 
Impairment of shares and share certificates 

For generating / posting of impairment there are two essential aspects:  
a) prolongation - i.e. how long the market value of the security is below its acquisition cost  
b) significance - i.e. change in the market price of the security versus acquisition cost of security 
 
The Company through back-office department monitors the following: 
a) for prolongation -  6 month period (ie the market price of a security in the original currency 

is within 6 consecutive months below its acquisition cost); 
b) for significance -  20% or more (ie the market price of a security in the original currency at 

the time of impairment is in the value of 80% of the purchase price, or even below 80%) 
To post an impairment it is sufficient to meet at least one of the two mentioned aspects, ie the 
significance and prolongation are not required to be reached at the same time. 
 
The impairment is booked by reducing of the acquisition cost of the securities and recording of relevant 
expense in the income statement.  Subsequently, valuation of the security is converted against the 
company's equity.  Impairment is non-reversible, ie when it is recorded; it is not possible to make any 
adjustment to the purchase price of the security (except for transactions with this security and other 
possible impairment). 
 
 
Impairment of bonds and debt securities 

Impairment (impairment through profit or loss) is based on the existence of objective evidence, that there 
is an event that will affect the estimated future cash flows based on the discounted cash flows using the 
original effective interest rate (while it not possible to accept all expected future losses, devolving into 
account only the losses incurred at the date of revision). 
Objective evidence is represented by significant changes that have an adverse effect occurring in the 
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer of the security operates.  
Downgrading of the issuer or other credit risk of the issuer of the security does not necessarily cause 
booking of impairment, unless there is other evidence which shows that there has been deterioration in 
the estimated future cash flows. 
In case of a reduction in cost by more than 30 % the Company assembles the commission for valuation / 
registration of the bond, and the impairment is recorded based on the recommendation of the 
commission.  
The impairment is booked by reducing of the acquisition cost of the securities and recording of relevant 
expense in the income statement. Subsequently, valuation of the security is converted against the 
company's equity. 
 
Booking of impairment is reversible, in case of the removal of objective evidence of original impairment 
that is cancelled in profit or loss.  

 
Trade and other receivables  
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Trade receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost (using the 
effective interest method). The adjustments are made for doubtful and bad debts. 
 
The impairment is recognized when the carrying value of the receivable is higher than its recoverable 
amount. The impairment is regularly tested. The recoverable amount is net present value of expected cash 
flow discounted by initial effective interest rate. The impairment is recognized in profit or loss. 
 
 
Effective interest method 

Effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or financial 
liability, and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant   
period. 
 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments 
(including all paid or received fees, transaction costs and other bonuses or discounts) through the 
expected life of the financial asset or liability to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 
liability. 
 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank and on hand and short-term deposits due within three 
months. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include items specified 
above except of overdrafts. 
 
Employee benefits 

Short term employee benefits 

Short term employee benefits include paid salaries and other remuneration to staff earned for their work 
provided to the Company in the current and prior periods (including the estimate of claims for holidays 
not taken at the balance sheet date). 

Other long-term employee benefits  

The liability arising from long-term employee benefits other than pension plans includes the estimate of 
the present value of benefits to employees for work performed in the current period and in the previous 
periods. Long term employee benefits include termination benefits in accordance with Act 311/2001 
Coll. (Labor Code) and another retirement benefits.  In accordance with applicable Slovak legislation the 
Company is obliged to pay to its employees when retire, the retirement benefit amounting to the average 
monthly salary. Based on the ageing structure of its employees the Company estimated that this liability 
is immaterial. These financial statements do not include any adjustment related to this obligation. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a 
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. If the time effect on cash is material, provisions are 
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flow using the rate before tax that reflects the present 
market valuation of time effect on cash and, if necessary, the risks specific for the given liability. Where 
discounting is applied, the increase in provision due to the time effect is recognized as interest expense. 
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Revenues  
Revenues are recognized if it is probable that economic benefit relating to the transaction will flow to the 
Company, and if their amount can be reliably quantified. The Company recognizes revenues on an 
accrual basis. 
The Company’s revenues consist mostly of remuneration from managed pension funds in accordance 
with the law on sds. 
 
Remuneration for administration of a pension fund  
 
The Company´s remuneration for the management of pension fund per calendar year is 0.3 % of average 
annual preliminary net asset value in the pension fund. 
Aliquot part of reward for administration of pension fund is calculated on a daily basis (working days). In 
the same working day, the value of the assets in pension fund is decreased by calculated aliquot part of 
reward for administration of pension fund. 
Remuneration for management of a personal pension account 

The Company’s reward for management of personal pension account is determined as 1% from the 
contribution allocated on account of not matched payments before the allocation of pension units to the 
personal pension account.     
 
Remuneration for appreciation of assets in a pension fund 
The Company’s reward for additional performance of assets in pension fund is calculated on daily basis 
(working days) in accordance with the appendix no. 3 of Act on sds.  The Company has no right for 
additional performance of assets in pension fund, if the calculated reward stated in previous sentence is 
negative. The coefficient for determination of the reward for additional performance of assets in pension 
fund equals to 0.1. 
On a day of determination of the reward, the Company decreases the value of assets in pension fund by 
the amount of the reward for additional performance of assets in pension fund.  

Taxation  
In the year 2014 and 2013 the Company accounted for the interest from current and deposit accounts 
directly to the cost in line with the change of Act on Income tax. The withheld tax shall be deemed to 
satisfy the tax liability on that income.  

The Company expects the taxable income for the year 2014 after deduction of tax losses to be 0 EUR. 
Therefore, in accordance with the amendment of the law on income tax, effective from 1 January 2014, 
the Company accounted in 2014 for minimum tax, the so called tax license, amounting to 2,880 EUR (0 
EUR in 2013). 

The calculation of the tax base for the year 2014 is not finished as of the balance sheet date of the 
Company on 31 December 2014, as the Company had requested for an extension to file income tax return 
for the year 2014 up to 30 June 2015. 

Deferred income tax is determined by using  of the balance sheet method on all temporary differences 
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their net book value for financial reporting purposes, at 
the balance sheet date. 

A deferred tax liability is recognized on all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is 
recognized on all deductible temporary differences, transfers of unused tax claims and unused tax losses 
carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which 
the temporary differences, unused tax claims and tax losses can be utilised. 
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Carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent 
that is not probable that a taxable income will be available to use the entire deferred tax asset or its part. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to be applicable at the time 
when the asset is realized or the liability settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) enacted at the 
balance sheet date. 

The Company is a VAT payer from the date of its establishment (hereafter "VAT"). In accordance with 
law, administration of a pension fund is exempt from VAT. Therefore, the Company does not deduct 
VAT from received taxable supplies. VAT not claimed is recognized in costs and/or acquisition cost. 

Prepaid expenses and unbilled revenues 
Prepaid expenses and unbilled revenues are recognized at the amount necessary to meet the accrual 
principle. 

Accrual expenses and deferred income 

Accrued expenses and deferred income are stated at an amount necessary to meet the accrual principle. 

Impairment 
The Company assesses the indicators of impairment of carrying value of assets at each balance sheet 
date. If there are impairment indicators identified, the Company estimates a recoverable amount and 
reduces the carrying value to reflect the recoverable amount. The impairment is recognized in statement 
of comprehensive income. 

The Company performed impairment test of deferred acquisition costs, and compared the present value 
of future profit and the amount of deferred acquisition costs at the balance sheet date. No impairment of 
deferred acquisition costs has been identified.  

The best estimates of the following factors were applied in the impairment test, increased by a risk 
margins: 
- inflation,  
- discount rate, 
- generated income, 
- unit cost for contract, 
- future growth of contributions from savers,  
- probability of termination of a contract. 
- mortality,  

REVENUES AND COSTS 

3.1 Revenues from administration of funds  

The structure of revenues from administration of funds is as follows: 

in eur 01-12/2014  01-12/2013 
Reward for management of personal pension accounts 1,111,593  1,057,389 
Reward for administration of pension funds 4,752,620  4,331,966 
Reward for additional performance of pension unit  6,682,924  3,041,225 

Total 12,547,137  8,430,580 
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3.2        Fees and commissions 

The structure of fees and commissions is shown in the following table: 

in eur 01-12/2014  01-12/2013 
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs (note 4.1) 2,508,416  2,793,610 
Fees paid to NBS 133,152  113,488 
Membership fees 2,000  1,000 
Settlement of agents’ commissions 81  36,345 
Total 2,643,649  2,944,443 

Amortization of deferred acquisition costs represent the portion of paid commissions recognized in costs. 
The settlement is based on the actuary calculation. The model of the calculation and the method of 
accounting for the agents’ commissions are described in details in Note 2. Summary of significant 
accounting policies. 
Fees to the NBS represent the contribution of the supervised entity of the financial market and other 
charges to the NBS. 
 
Membership fees present the membership fees paid to the Association of pension fund management 
companies. 

The settlement of agents’ commission represents the settlement of the Company’s right to refund the 
commissions previously paid to agents, after their refund. The right to refund the commission arises when 
a client with whom the agent signed a second pension pillar contract has not met the contractual 
conditions (e.g contributions from Social Insurance Company have not been received, the client has 
changed to other pension fund management company within a certain period). 

 

3.3. Amortization of receivables from commissions 

 
In 2014 the Company recognized the cost of depreciation of the lapsed bad debts from commissions to 
agents of sds in the amount of 1,022,206 EUR. 
 
The Company also released the allowance to these claims (Note 3.6). 

 

3.4   Personnel expenses  

The structure of the personnel expensesis as follows: 
in eur 01-12/2014  01-12/2013 
Wages costs 354,372  205,804 
Social security costs and other personal expenses 149,589  82,943 
Total 503,961  288,747 

 

Average number of Company’s employees in the period of 01-12/2014: 11, in the period of 01-12/2013 
10.   
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3.5 Depreciation and amortization 
 

in eur 01-12/2014  01-12/2013 
Amortization of other intangible assets 10,352  10,352 
Total 10,352  10,352 

 
 
3.6 Release of adjustments 
 
In 2014 the Company released the allowance to receivables against sds agents, where the risk of non-
payment increased to a total of 1,022,483 EUR (in 2013 amounting to 36,345 EUR).  
 
The largest part of the release of allowances in 2014 was the release due to the depreciation of 
the lapsed bad debts against sds agents SDS in the amount of 1,022,206 EUR (Note 3.3). 
 
 
3.7 Other operating costs, net 

The structure of operating costs, net is shown in the following table: 
in eur 01-12/2014  01-12/2013 
Material consumption 2,434  2,688 
Postage fees 96,924  114,006 
IT advisory 111,599  113,214 
Supporting services in line with contract with AXA Services 3,560,310  3,399,166 
Advertisement costs 5,200  5,483 
The cost of contact with clients and printed materials 72,821  95,172 
Phone charges 3,693  5,726 
Legal and tax advisory 18,922  10,136 
Audit 54,888  46,506 
Head Office expenses 1,170,177  1,230,147 
Other operating costs, net 86,944  74,206 
Total 5,183,912  5,096,450 

 

Supporting services in line with contract with AXA Services – present supporting services invoiced based 
on service contract closed with AXA Services, s.r.o. at 1 September 2011. The subject of the contract is 
to provide or intermediate the services defined by the contract, mainly: 
• Information technology services (IT) 
• Finance and accounting services  
• Services of financial reporting and application  
• Services of controlling and planning  
• Services of marketing and public relations (PR)  
• Human resources services (HR)  
• Services of education and development  
• Commissions services  
• Administrative and other economic services  
• Services of call centre, communication centre, registry office and archives  
• Rent of assets and premises 
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Other net operating costs are mainly related to expenses for staff accommodation, travel and other costs 
and revenues associated with the operation of the Company. 

 
3.8   Financial income, net 

The structure of financial revenues, net is shown in the following table: 
in eur 01-12/2014  01-12/2013 
Interest from bank accounts and term deposits 1,800  11,205 
Interest and amortization of securities 111,875  53,313 
Bank fees -4,877  -4,493 
Foreign exchange rate differences -907  -492 
Other financial costs -2,984  -2,238 
Total 104,907  57,295 

 

3.9 Income tax 

The following information and calculations relating to income tax for the year 2014 is the best estimate   
of the Company as of balance sheet date. The company had requested for an extension to file income 
tax return for the year 2014 up to 30 June 2015. 
 

In the year 2014, the Company accounted for the interest from current and deposit accounts directly to 
the cost in line with the change of Act on Income tax. The withheld tax shall be deemed to satisfy the 
tax liability on that income. In 2014 it amounted to 340 EUR (vs. 2,752 EUR in 2013). 
 

The Company expects the taxable income for the year 2014 after deduction of tax losses to be 0 EUR. 
Therefore, in accordance with the amendment of the law on income tax, effective from 1 January 2014, 
the Company accounted in 2014 for minimum tax, the so called tax license, amounting to 2,880 EUR 
(0 EUR in 2013). 

Reconciliation of the income tax calculated by using of the statutory tax rate from the profit before tax 
to the recorded income tax for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013: 

in eur 2014  2013 

Profit before tax 4,310,447  178,862 
Income tax – statutory rate 22% 948,298  41,138 
Permanent differences      23,661  4,995 
Tax license  2,880  0 
Change in unrecognized deferred tax receivable  - 971,619  -43,381 
Income tax             3,220  2,752 

 

Tax rate of 23% was used for determination of income tax for year 2013. 

 
The difference in the year-on-year development of unrecognised deferred tax liability in the amount of 
1,427,639 EUR and the impact of unrecognized deferred tax asset according to the table above in the 
amount of 971,619 EUR is due to unused tax loss, which can no longer be applied in future periods    
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totalling 456,020 EUR.  
 
In 2014 the Company recognized a deferred tax liability arising from valuation differences from 
revaluation of securities available for sale into equity in the amount of 72,376 EUR (vs. EUR 0 in 
2013) – Note 4.6. 
 
In line with the expected future results and tax bases the Company estimated that it is probable that the 
tax losses could not be used. Due to uncertainty over the ability of the Company to achieve planned 
results (particularly due to changes in legislation), the Company decided not to recognize the deferred 
tax receivable.  

Should the Company recognize a deferred tax receivable, its amount would be as follows: 
in eur 2014  2013 

Unused tax loss 1,430,915  2,645,574 
Other items  1,196  619 
Adjustments to receivables 2,355  227,301 
Bonuses to employees and related charges 15,077  3,688 
Deferred tax assets 1,449,543  2,877,182 

 

Expiration of tax losses, which the Company can amortize, is stated in the following table: 

in eur 2014  2013 
Till year 2014 5,521,176  3,353,123 
Till year 2015 2,168,053  0 
Till year 2016 2,168,053  0 
Till year 2017 2,168,053  3,780,575 
Till year 2018 0  2,654,292 
Till year 2019 0  1,007,255 
Till year 2020 0  1,230,090 
Total 12,025,335  12,025,335 

 
Change in the expiration of tax losses is due to the amendment of the income tax law effective from 1 
January 2014. 

4. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

4.1. Deferred acquisition costs 

Deferred acquisition costs in the amount of 45,769,617 EUR (as at 31/12/2013 in the amount of 
48,032,870 EUR) present the carrying value of capitalized commissions paid to agents and administrators 
of pension savings agents’ network, that relate to future periods.  

Changes in deferred acquisition costs:  

in eur 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 
Balance as at 1 January  48,032,870  50,420,057 
Change in deferred acquisition costs 245,163  406,423 
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Amortization of deferred acquisition costs (note 3.2) -2,508,416  -2,793,610 
Total 45,769,617  48,032,870 

The average amortization period of deferred acquisition costs is 20,4 years and the maximum period is 42 
years. In year 2013 the average amortization period of deferred acquisition costs is 19,7 years and the 
maximum period is 42 years. 

 

Amortization period of deferred acquisition costs: 
 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total 
Average amortization period 18.5 22.8 29.1 28.7 28.3 28.8 28.2 27.1 24.5 24.9 20.4 
Maximum amortization period 38 40 42 40 40 40 40 40 40 39 42 

Impairment test and sensitivity analysis of impairment test 

Test results for the calendar years: 

 in thousands of EUR 2014 2013 
Balance of DAC at the year-end 45,770 48,033 
Present value of future profits 107,062 162,487 

 

The present value of future profits means the present value of future fees for administration (revenues for 
the Company) reduced by the present value of future expense excluding future amortization of DAC (the 
future profits should cover the amortization of DAC). In order to achieve better reliability of the test, risk 
margins are applied in determining the future profits by increasing the costs of cancellations and 
mortality by 10% and by discounting through a risk free interest rate reduced by 0,25 percentage point. 
The test is “successful”, if the present value of future profits is greater than the current value of DAC. In 
our case, the future profits are sufficient to cover the amortization of current DAC in future. 
 

Subsequently, this present value of future profits is subject to sensitivity analysis to selected assumptions; 
the results are shown in the following table: 
 

 in thousands of EUR 2014 2013 
costs +10% 94,836 153,664 
cancellations +10% 104,966 158,480 
mortality +10% 106,350       n/a 
interest rate -1 percentage point 62,477       n/a 
change in contribution -0,25 percentage point  159,655 
 

To make it clearer these values have been transformed in order to reflect percentage changes of the 
present value of future profits if individual parameters change compared to the base value, which is 
presented in the table above. 
  2014 2013 
costs +10% -11.4% -5.4% 
cancellations +10% -2.0% -2.5% 
mortality +10% -0.7% n/a 
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interest rate -1 percentage point -41.6% n/a 
change in contribution -0,25 percentage point  -1.7% 

Sensitivity analysis  

If the assumptions used in determining of DAC were changed, the DAC reported in the statement of 
financial position would be changed as follows: 

Sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2014 
in thousands of 

EUR 
percentage 

change 
reality 45,770 - 
cancellations +10% 45,681 -0.19% 

 

Sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2013 
in thousands of 

EUR 
percentage 

change 
reality 48,033 - 
cancellations +10% 47,986 -0.10% 

 
The subject of testing is the sensitivity of deferred acquisition costs at the year-end to the changes in 
selected assumptions which influence the expected development of number of closed contracts. 
 
4.2 Other intangible assets 

Movement of intangible assets in year 2014: 
in eur Software  

Acquisition cost / valuation   
As at 1 January 2014 379,584 
Additions 0 
Disposals  0 
as at 31 December 2014 379,584 

Accumulated depreciation  
As at 1 January 2014 356,291 
Amortization (note 3.4) 10,352 
Disposals 0 
as at 31 December 2014 366,643 

Carrying value as at 1 January 2014 23,293 
as at 31 December 2014 12,941 

 
Movement of intangible assets in year 2013: 
in eur Software  

Acquisition cost / valuation   
As at 1 January 2013 379,584 
Additions 0 
Disposals  0 
As at 31 December 2013 379,584 
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Accumulated depreciation  
As at 1 January 2013 345,939 
Amortization (note 3.4) 10,352 
Disposals 0 
As at 31 December 2013 356,291 

Carrying value as at 1 January 2013 33,645 
As at 31 December 2013 23,293 

 

Intangible assets mainly consists of software Blue in the amount of  355,397 EUR that is used for 
processing of contributions to the second pillar, for calculation of pension units and other records related 
to participants in pension fund in AXA d.s.s., a.s.  In the amount of 21,807 EUR is software Extranet 
which is used for processing of information about agents of pension savings.  
 
 

4.3 Trade and other receivables 

The structure of trade and other receivables is shown in the following table: 

in eur 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 
Receivables towards DSS funds 927,276  49,287 
Prepaid expenses and unbilled revenues 10,899  8,815 
Other receivables 20,323  1,042,480 
Adjustments to other receivables -10,705  -1,033,188 
Total 947,793  67,394 

 

Receivable against the fund of 927,276 EUR represents the Company’s right to remuneration for its 
management of pension funds for December 2014. Their payment was carried out on 08/01/2015.  

As of 31 December 2014 it was entitled to a full month of December 2014, whereas as of 31 December 
2013 only the receivable for the last days of December 2013 remained unpaid.  

Other receivables amounting to 20,323 EUR (in 2013 amounting to 1,042,480 EUR) mostly 
present the receivable towards agents of pension saving in the amount of 10,978 EUR (in 2013: 
1,033,188 EUR) that arose from the cancellation of paid commissions. An allowance of 10,705 
EUR is recognized to the mentioned receivable (vs 1,033,188 EUR in 2013).  

Impairment of receivables against agents in 2014 was mainly due to the write-off of lapsed bad 
debts from commissions to sds agents in the amount of 1,022,206 EUR (Note 3.3). The 
Company also released the allowance to these claims (Note 3.6). 
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Ageing structure of the receivables considering the provision recorded: 

 
year 2014 Due Overdue Total 

in eur 
less than 3 

months 
less than 1 

year   

Receivables towards DSS funds 927,276 0 0 927,276 
Prepaid expenses and unbilled revenues 10,899 0 0 10,899 
Other receivables, net 2,535 0 7,083 9,618 
Total 940,710 0 7,083 947,793 

 

year 2013 Due Overdue Total 

in eur 
less than 3 
months 

less than 1 
year 

  

Receivables towards DSS funds 49,287 0 0 49,287 
Prepaid expenses and unbilled revenues 8,741 74 0 8,815 
Other receivables, net 2,481 0 6,811 9,292 
Total 60,509 74 6,811 67,394 
     

 
 
 

4.4   Inventories 
 
in eur 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 
Leaflets, forms and promotion materials  4,327  3,397 
Total 4,327  3,397 

 
 

4.5   Cash and cash equivalents 
 
in eur 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 
Cash at bank and  in hand 25,752  3,094,562 
Total 25,752  3,094,562 

 
 

All bank accounts are held by the Company’s depositary, as of 31/12/2014 and 31/12/2013  are 
denominated in local currency.  
 

 

4.6  Financial assets available for sale – realizable securities 
 
in eur 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 
Government bonds  9,939,106  9,165,348 
Government-guaranteed bonds 7,523,216  0 
Share certificates  3,516,514  3,504,907 
Total 20,978,836  12,670,255 
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The structure of financial assets available for sale as of 31 December 2014: 
 
in eur 

Acquisition cost 

Accrued 
interest 
income Amortization Revaluation Total 

Government bonds  9,621,092 109,694 -112,526 320,846 9,939,106 
Government-guaranteed 
bonds 7,520,750 11,703 -862 -8,375 7,523,216 

Share certificates  3,500,000 0 0 16,514 3,516,514 
Total 20,641,842 121,397 -113,388 328,985 20,978,836 

 

The structure of financial assets available for sale as of 31 December 2013: 
 
in eur 

Acquisition cost 

Accrued 
interest 
income Amortization Revaluation Total 

Government bonds 9,072,393 94,999 -35,141 33,097 9,165,348 
Government-guaranteed 
bonds 0 0 0 0 0 
Share certificates  3,500,000 0 0 4,907 3,504,907 
Total 12,572,393 94,999 -35,141 38,004 12,670,255 

 
The Company determined the value of financial assets as of 31 December 2014 and 31 
December 2013 on the basis of last trading day at Stock Exchange Bratislava and Bloomberg.  
 
Financial assets are denominated in Euro. 
 
Revaluation of financial assets available for sale: 

 
in eur 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 
Revaluation  - government bonds 320,846  33,097 
Revaluation  - government-guaranteed bonds -8,375  0 
Revaluation  - Share certificates  16,514  4,907 
Deferred tax from valuation differences (Note 4.12) -72,376  0 
Total 256,609  38,004 

 
Revaluation differences represent the difference from the revaluation of securities into equity. 
 
As of 31 December 2014, the Company recognized a deferred tax arising from valuation differences in 
revaluation of financial assets available for sale. 
 
 

4.7 Share capital 

As of 31/12/2014, the share capital of the Company was 59,923,940 EUR and consisted of 23,620 
ordinary shares (as of 31/12/2013 the share capital consisted from 23,620 shares in total amount of 
78,404,359 EUR). The nominal value of one share is 2,537 EUR (as at 31 December the nominal value of 
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one share in the amount of 23,018 shares was 3,319.19 EUR and the nominal value of one share in the 
amount of 602 shares was 3,320 EUR). 
 
The sole reason for the decrease in the share capital of the Company in 2014 was to resolve the losses of 
the Company and the goal was exclusively to cover the accrued losses, which the Company recognized as 
of 12 December 2014. 

4.8 Legal reserve fund 
The legal reserve fund in the amount of 1,006,905 EUR (vs 995,861 EUR as of 31 December 2013) 
represents the creation of a fund upon the establishment of the Company in the amount of 995,861 EUR, 
the contribution in June 2014 in the amount of 17,611 EUR (10% of net profit in 2013) and drawing in 
December 2014 of 6,567 EUR to settle the accrued losses. 
 

4.9 Other capital funds 
Other capital funds as at 31/12/2014 are in the amount of 1,127,716 EUR (as of  31/12/2013 in the 
amount of 1,127,716 EUR). 

General Meeting decided on 31 January 2013 about the contribution of the cash deposit of 1,000,000 
EUR that does not increase the registered capital of the Comapny.  The cash contribution was fully paid 
in February 2013 and increased the Company's other capital funds. 

General Meeting held on 25 June 2014 decided about the payment of 1,000,000 EUR from other capital 
funds of the Company to its shareholder. 

On 25 August 2014 the General Meeting of the Company decided to cancel its decision dated 25 June 
2014 on the payment of 1,000,000 EUR from other capital funds of the Company to its shareholder.  
The funds were returned to the bank account of the Company on 9 September 2014.     

  

4.10 The profit or loss of previous years and current period 

The structure of profit or loss of previous years and current period is shown in the following table: 

 
in eur 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 
Accumulated losses  0  -18,645,485 
Retained earnings 0  0 
Profit or loss of the current period 4,307,227  176,110 
The total profit or loss of previous years and 
current period 4,307,227  -18,469,375 

 

The General Meeting held on 25 June 2014 decided on the distribution of the 2013 profit in the amount 
of 176 110 EUR in the following way: 

1.) increase the legal reserve fund by 17,611 EUR (10% of net income in 2013) 
2.) the remaining part of 158,499 EUR was recognized in retained earnings. 

The General Meeting held on 12 December 2014 decided to use the retained earnings in the amount of 
158,499 EUR to cover accrued losses. 
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In 2014 there was a complete settlement of accrued losses as follows: 
1.) using retained earnings in the amount of 158,499 EUR 
2.) decrease in share capital in the amount of 18,480,419 EUR 
3.) using the basic reserve fund of the Company in the amount of 6,567 EUR 

 

4.11 Trade and other payables 

The structure of trade and other payables is shown in the following table: 

 
in eur 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 
Trade payables  767,734  1,466,342 
Payables to agents 62,772  17,819 
Employees payables 77,208  26,898 
Payables to insurance companies and Social fund 47,015  60,378 
Other payables to shareholders 2,085  2,085 
Trade and other payables total 956,814  1,573,522 
Long-term part 0  0 
Short-term part 956,814  1,573,522 

 
The ageing structure of payables: 
    
year 2014 Due Overdue Total 

in eur 
less than 3 

months 
less than 1 

year   
Trade payables  335,871 416,487 15,376 767,734 
Payables to agents 19,461 0 43,311 62,772 
Employees payables 70,420 6,788 0 77,208 
Payables to insurance companies and 
Social fund 40,149 6,866  47,015 

Other payables to shareholders 0 2,085 0 2,085 
Total 130,030 15,739 43,311 956,814 

 

year 2013 Due Overdue Total 

in eur 
less than 3 

months 
less than 1 

year   
Trade payables  1,413,355 52,987 0 1,466,342 
Payables to agents 8,605 502 8,712 17,819 
Employees payables 11,639 15,259 0 26,898 
Payables to insurance companies and 
Social fund 52,397 7,981 0 60,378 
Other payables to shareholders 0 2,085 0 2,085 
Total 1,485,996 78,814   8,712 1,573,522 



174

AXA d.s.s., a.s. 
 
NOTES 
to the interim financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by EU as at 31 December 2014 

 
37 

 

4.12 Tax liabilities 
 
in eur 31 December 2014  31 December 2013 
Income tax – tax license 2,880  0 
Employment tax  5,383  3,773 
VAT - tax liability 79,413  217,909 
Motor vehicle tax 3  2 
Deferred tax from valuation differences (Note 4.6) 72,376  0 
Total 160,055  221,684 

 

5.  PURPOSE AND PRINCIPLES OF THE RISK MANGEMENT 

 
In performing its business activities, the Company is exposed to various risks that can have an adverse 
effect on its results and equity. The Company is exposed to a risk of decreasing revenues from the 
management of investments relating to impairment of assets in pension funds, resulting from their 
revaluation caused by volatility of the financial markets. In accordance with Act 43/2004 on retirement 
pension savings, the Company manages these risks through diversification of assets in the pension funds, 
costs management and modelling scenarios for potential development of managed assets in order to 
reduce negative effect of the changes in financial markets on the valuation of assets managed by the 
funds.  
 

Interest rate risk and liquidity risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk of losses arising from changes in interest rates and their effect on the value of 
assets in pension fund. Liquidity risk is the risk that the position of the pension fund will not be able to 
sell, liquidate or enter into a limited cost and in a sufficiently short time, thus compromising the ability of 
supplementary pension fund management company to pay a pension. The Company regularly monitors 
this risk through changes in the market value of assets and liabilities as well as cash flows in the pension 
funds. The assets are measured at amount which is the fair value at the valuation date. 

 

Credit risk 
Credit risk presents the group of risks which together impact the assets in the pension funds. The 
Company defines credit risk as a risk resulted from debtor´s or contractual party´s failure to meet its 
contractual obligations. The credit risk includes also risk of concentration, risk of settlement of business 
and state risk. The risk of concentration is risk resulted from concentration of trades of the Company 
against the person, group of person, state, geographic area or business sector. The risk of settlement of 
business is risk resulted from the fact that the business will not be realized in line with the agreed 
conditions. The state risk is risk that state or Central Bank of Slovakia will not be able to fulfil their 
obligations against foreign countries and other debtors in country will not be able to pay their obligation 
due to the fact that they are residents of the country. 
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Operating risk 
The Company considers the operating risk to be a risk of loss caused by defaults, breaches of internal 
rules and laws, system outages, damage incurred by internal processes, employees, or systems as well as 
damage incurred by external circumstances. The operating risk further includes legal risk, which means a 
risk of unenforceability of contracts, threat of unsuccessful law suits or awards that have negative impact 
on the Company. 

Currency risk 
Currency risk is the risk of loss resulting from the changes in exchange rates and their impact on the 
value of assets in the pension fund denominated in Euro. The Company is not exposed to significant 
currency risk.  

 

The cancellation risk 
The cancellation risk is a risk that a client might transfer the contract to another supplementary pension 
fund management company prior to the end of the saving period. This exposes the Company to a loss 
resulting from future development which will be less favourable than expected at the time of valuation. 
The Company manages this risk through high level of care of its clients. 

 

Risk of founding of retirement pension funds’ assets from own resources 
In accordance with Act no. 43/2004 Coll. on retirment pension savings, the Company monitors the 
performance of the Dlhopisový garantovaný d.d.f. within 10-years monitoring period, and evaluates it on 
a monthly basis. In 2014 there was an investment strategy defined for the pension funds managed by the 
Company having significant impacts on portfolio and risk management. The goal was to achieve the 
highest possible yield for savers complying with statutory limits and conditions, especially to achieve 
positive additional performance in monitored period. To meet these goals, the Company applies strict 
management of the duration of funds, low credit exposure, low interest rate risk and currency risk 
elimination. 

6.  CAPITAL ADEQUACY 
 

The Company shall follow legal requirements in relation to capital adequacy whereby their assessment is 
based on several aspects in line with the Retirement pension savings act as amended and with the NBS 
Decree No. 101/2008. 

As of 31/12/2014 and as of 31/12/2013, as well as during the previous years ended as at these dates, the 
Company met all the requirements of capital adequacy. 
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The following table shows the structure of the Company’s capital adequacy, as required by the current 
legislation, as of 31/12/2014 and 31/12/2013: 
 

Capital adequacy  2014 2013 

  
Amount of the ratio in thds 

of EUR 
Items creating basic own resources  66,366 80,704 
Items decreasing basic own resources   13  18,668 
Basic own resources  66,353 61,860 
Additional own resources 0 0 
Total of basic and additional own resources  66,353 62,036 
Deductible items  0 0 
Own resources  66,353 62,036 
Liquid assets  21,005 15,765 
Total assets in pension funds  1,667,707 1,498,384 

Items used for determination of capital adequacy ratios     
General operating expenses   5,913 7,053 
Liabilities of Pension Fund Management Company  1,117 1,795 
Receivables towards pension funds  927 49 

Capital adequacy ratios Amount of the ratio in % 
Percentage share of own resources on general operating expenses for  
previous calendar year, should  not be less than 25 %  4,488 %  3,518 % 

The ratio of the difference of liquid assets and liabilities and receivables 
on the assets in all pension funds that are managed by Pension Fund 
Management Company, should not be less than 0. 005 250 % 187 % 

The capital is adequate Yes Yes 
 

7. CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

 
As of 31/12/2014 and 31/12/2013 the Pension Fund Management Company has the significant 
concentration of assets towards UniCredit Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s., who is the Depositary of 
the funds managed by the Company – in line with the §101 article 3 of the Retirement pension saving act. 
Due to the above reasons, the Company did not introduce procedures to assure the accepted credit risk 
concentration. 

8.  RELATED PARTIES 

Related parties are: 

In the Slovak Republic: 

AXA d.d.s., a.s., corporate ID: 35 977 540 
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AXA Services, spol. s r.o., corporate ID: 35 893 940 
AXA investiční společnost a.s., organizačná zložka Slovensko, corporate ID: 36 770 540 
AXA životní pojišťovna a.s., pobočka poisťovne z iného členského štátu, corporate ID: 35 968 079 
AXA pojišťovna a.s., pobočka poisťovne z iného členského štátu, corporate ID: 36 857 521 

In other countries: 

AXA Česká republika, s.r.o., corporate ID: 25 672 703, Czech Republic 
AXA Penzijní fond a.s., IČO: 61 859 818, Czech Republic 
AXA životní pojišťovna a.s., corporate ID: 61 859 524, Czech Republic 
AXA životní pojišťovna a.s., corporate ID: 25 195 604, Czech Republic 
AXA Leben AG, General Guisan-Strasse 40, Winterthur, Switzerland 
AXA, S.A., 25 Avenue Matignon, 75008 Paris, France 
AXA CESSIONS, Paris, France 
AXA  investiční společnost a.s., corporate ID:  64 579 018, Czech Republic 
GIE AXA, 23 Avenue Matignon, 75008 Paris, France 
AXA Technology Services UK Ltd, Bristol, United Kingdom, corporate ID: 1854856 
 
Board of Directors 

Chairman of Board of Directors:   
Ing. Peter Socha 
Members of the Board of Directors:  
Ing. Ľubor Vrlák  
Martin Vogl 
Sébastien Guidoni 
 
During the respective accounting periods, the Company did not carry out any transactions with the 
members of the Board of Directors. 

a) During the accounting period the Company performed the following transactions with 
related parties (net of VAT): 
 

in eur 01-12/2014 01-12/2013 
 
Services received - services according to the contract: 
   AXA Services, s.r.o. 3,560,310 3,399,166  
Services received - call center 
   AXA Česká republika, s.r.o. 7,454 7,353 
Services received – head office costs  
   GIE AXA 

- billed 
- unbilled supplies estimate 
- adjustment of 2013 for the final settlement of services of 2013 

completed in 2014 

742,307 
383,292 

0 
 

1,075,426 
0 

-150,452 
 

 Personnel expenses 
   AXA SA         37 909   0 
Net commissions paid to agents of the internal network through 
   AXA Services, s.r.o.        24 413   0 
Income from increase in other capital funds 
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   AXA životní pojišťovna a.s.             1 000 000           1 
000 000 
Expenses from decrease in other capital funds 
   AXA životní pojišťovna a.s.             1 000 000  
 0 
 
 (b) Receivables and payables resulted from transactions with related parties are shown in the 
following table: 

 in eur 31 December 2014 31 December 2013 
Other receivables:   
   AXA Services, s.r.o. 22 0 
Trade payables: 
   AXA Services, s.r.o. 328,208 330,379 
   AXA Česká republika, s.r.o. 782 0 
   GIE AXA  

- from received invoices  
- unbilled supplies estimate 

                              0 
                   383,292 

1,075,426 
0 

   

 
9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

The Slovak tax authorities perform regular tax inspections. Since the interpretation of application of the 
tax law may differ, amounts disclosed in the financial statements may be subject to changes based on the 
decision of the tax administrator. Management of the Company is not aware of any circumstances that 
may lead to significant costs to the Company in the future periods. 

The Company is not a partner with unlimited liability in any other company. 

 

10. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE  

 
No events occurred after 31 December 2014 having a significant impact on fair presentation of financial 
statements. 

On 15 March 2015, the amendments to the law on pension savings no. 43/2004 Coll. adopted by Act no. 
25/2015 Coll. came into force, allowing the opening of the II. pillar from 15 March 2015 to 15 June 
2015, i.e. allows to enter the second pillar by persons who are not participating in the savings pillar and 
on the other hand allows to leave the pension savings system with the exception of savers who have 
arranged the retirement pension payment or early retirement pension with the insurance company or 
pension fund management company or have arranged the payment of the proceeds of the investment with 
their DSS. The given amendment will affect the absolute amount of the remuneration borne by the 
Company-managed pension funds of the Company. 
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The financial statements was compiled as of 20/03/2015. 
 
 
 
 
 

Ing. Peter Socha  Ing. Ľubor Vrlák 
Chairman of Board of Directors:   Member of Board of Directors: 

 
 
 
 

Ing. Ľubica Rondošová  Ing. Anetta Pohlmüllerová 
Responsible for the preparation of 

financial statements  
 Responsible for bookkeeping 
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List of AXA Regional Directorates

Bratislava Regional Directorate
Cintorínska 11, 
811 08 Bratislava
Telephone: +421 2 3211 3170
Mobile Phone: +421 918 701 621
E-mail: riaditelstvo.bratislava@axa.sk

Trnava Regional Directorate
Hlavná 2/3 
917 01 Trnava
Telephone: +421 33 5341 351
Mobile Phone: +421 918 701 620
E-mail: riaditelstvo.trnava@axa.sk

Trenčín Regional Directorate
Mierové námestie 14
911 01 Trenčín
Telephone: +421 32 7445 995
Mobile Phone: +421 918 701 622
E-mail: riaditelstvo.trencin@axa.sk

Banská Bystrica Regional Directorate
Dolná ul. 47
974 01 Banská Bystrica 
Telephone: +421 48 4156 808
Mobile Phone: +421 917 860 412
E-mail: riaditelstvo.banska.bystrica@axa.sk

Žilina Regional Directorate
Štúrova 14
010 01 Žilina
Telephone: +421 41 5643 073
Mobile Phone: +421 918 701 624
E-mail: riaditelstvo.zilina@axa.sk

Prešov Regional Directorate
Slovenská ul. 84
080 01 Prešov 
Telephone: +421 51 7581 030
Mobile Phone: +421 917 860 420
E-mail: riaditelstvo.presov@axa.sk

Košice Regional Directorate
Pribinova 2
040 01 Košice 
Telephone: +421 55 6220 260
Mobile Phone: +421 918 701 626
E-mail: riaditelstvo.kosice@axa.sk

Nové Zámky Regional Directorate
Podzámska 31
940 01 Nové Zámky
Telephone: +421 35 64 32 141
Mobile Phone: +421 918 710 731
E-mail: riaditelstvo.nove.zamky@axa.sk

Bardejov Regional Directorate
Stöcklova 13
085 01 Bardejov
Telephone: +421 54 4795 051
Mobile Phone: +421 915 851 154
E-mail: riaditelstvo.bardejov@axa.sk

Vranov nad Topľou Regional Directorate
Duklianskych hrdinov 1001
093 01 Vranov nad Topľov
Telephone: +421 57 4432 403
Mobile Phone: +421 917 860 405
E-mail: riaditelstvo.vranov@axa.sk

Additional Distribution Nitra
Štefánikova trieda 9
949 01 Nitra
Mobile Phone: +421 917 401 491
E-mail: monika.hlinkova@axa.sk
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